
Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Mission Statement: Inspire individuals & enrich our community one student at a time. 
 

Vision Statement: Be a national leader in academic excellence & partner of choice in the 
communities we serve. 

 
 

KANSAS CITY KANSAS COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Board of Trustees Special Meeting 
Tuesday, June 20, 2023 – 4:00 P.M. 

Meeting Location: Hybrid – KCKCC-Main Campus Upper Jewell Lounge and Zoom Meeting 

Agenda 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Roll Call 
 
3. New Business: 
 Plans for the “Wash Barn” at Technical Education Center. Presented by Dr. Greg Mosier. 

 
4. Executive Session(s): 

1) Executive session for consultation with an attorney for the public body or agency which 
would be deemed privileged in the attorney-client relationship with possible action to 
follow in open session (10-minute duration). Open session will take place in Upper 
Jewell Lounge and in the virtual meeting room. 
 

2) Executive session for the preliminary discussion of the acquisition of real property 
with possible action to follow in open session (15-minute duration). Open session will 
take place in Upper Jewell Lounge and in the virtual meeting room. 
 

5. Adjournment 



Page 1 of 2  

 
Mission Statement: Inspire individuals & enrich our community one student at a time. 

Vision Statement: Be a national leader in academic excellence & partner of choice in the 
communities we serve. 

 
 

KANSAS CITY KANSAS COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Board of Trustees Meeting 

Tuesday, June 20, 2023 – 5:00 P.M. 
 

Meeting Location: Hybrid – KCKCC-Main Campus Upper Jewell Lounge and Zoom Meeting 
 

Agenda 
 

1. Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance 
 

2. KCKCC Mission Statement 
 

3. Roll Call 
 

4. Approval of Agenda 
 

5. Audience to Patrons and Petitioners (5-minute limit) 
 

6. Recognitions/Presentations: 
 KCKCC Foundation Biannual Update. Presented by Ms. Mary Spangler, Executive Director 

of the KCKCC Foundation and Ms. Mary Ricketts, KCKCC Foundation Chairperson. 
 

7. Communications: 
 Introduction of Dr. Fabiola Riobe, Vice President of Educational Innovation and Global 

Programming. Presented by Dr. Greg Mosier. 
 

8. Board Committee Reports 
 

9. Consent Agenda: 
 (Item A) - Approval of Minutes of the May 16, 2023 Meeting 
 (Item A1) - Approval of Minutes of the May 16, 2023 Special Meeting 
 (Item B) - Approval of Recommendations for Payment 
 (Item C) - Approval of Ratification Items 
 (Item D) - Approval of Personnel Items (H.R.) 

 
10. Student Senate Report – Not scheduled due to summer break. 



Page 2 of 2  

 
11. President’s Report – Dr. Greg Mosier 

 
12. Executive Vice President Report – Dr. Scott Balog 
 
13. Vice President Academic Affairs Report – Dr. Tiffany Bohm, Dean of Health Professions, on 

behalf of Mr. Jerry Pope, Vice President of Academic Affairs 
 

14. Vice President Student Affairs and Enrollment Management Report – Dr. Chris Meiers 
 

15. Vice President Educational Innovation and Global Programming Report – Dr. Fabiola Riobe 
 
16. Chief Marketing and Institutional Image Officer Report – Ms. Kris Green 

 
17. Chief Financial Officer Report – Dr. Shelley Kneuvean 

 
18. Chief Human Resources Officer Report – Ms. Christina McGee 

 
19. Chief Information Officer Report – Mr. Peter Gabriel 

 
20. Unfinished Business: 
 Approval of the Strategic Plan 2024-2027. Presented by Ms. Kris Green, Chief 

Marketing and Institutional Image Officer. 
 Approval of the Board of Trustees Meeting Schedule for FY2024. Presented by Dr. 

Greg Mosier. 
 

21. New Business: 
 Approval of Preapproved Contracts List FY2024. Presented by Dr. Shelley Kneuvean. 
 Approval of Alcohol Resolution for the Celebration of Mass for the Catholic Students of 

Kansas City Kansas Community College for FY2024 (multiple dates). Presented by Dr. 
Greg Mosier. 

 
22. Adjournment 

 
 
 
 
 

Next Meeting of the Board of Trustees: 
Tuesday, July 18, 2023 - 5:00 p.m. 

Hybrid Meeting (KCKCC – Main Campus & Zoom Virtual Meeting Room) 



Page 1 of 19  

 
Mission Statement: Inspire individuals & enrich our community one student at a time. 

Vision Statement: Be a national leader in academic excellence & partner of choice in the 
communities we serve. 

 
 

KANSAS CITY KANSAS COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Board of Trustees Meeting 

Tuesday, May 16, 2023 – 5:00 P.M. 
 

Meeting Location: Hybrid – KCKCC-Main Campus Upper Jewell Lounge and Zoom Meeting 
 
CONSENT AGENDA – Item A  
Meeting Minutes  
 

1. Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance: Chairwoman Evelyn Criswell called the meeting to 
order at 5:10 p.m. in Upper Jewell Lounge at KCKCC-Main Campus and in the KCKCC Zoom 
meeting platform on Tuesday, May 16, 2023. The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Trustee 
Brune. 

 
2. KCKCC Mission Statement: Chair Criswell read the College mission statement. 

 
3. Roll Call: Trustees present were Chairwoman Evelyn Criswell, Vice Chair Brad Isnard, Mr. 

Donald Ash, Ms. Rosalyn Brown, Ms. Pat Brune, Dr. Ray Daniels and Ms. Linda Hoskins Sutton. 
 

4. Approval of Agenda: Chair Criswell called for a motion to approve the agenda. Trustee 
Daniels made the motion. Trustee Brown seconded the motion. The Motion Carried. 

 
5. Audience to Patrons and Petitioners: Chair Criswell invited patrons or petitioners to 

address the Board. There were no patrons or petitioners online or in the meeting room. 
 

6. Recognitions/Presentations: 
 Chair Criswell invited Ms. Kris Green, Chief Marketing and Institutional Image Officer, 

to present the Strategic Plan 2024-2027 Final Draft. 
o Ms. Green explained the developmental process of the Strategic Plan. There were 16 

listening sessions online and at each KCKCC location, the steering committee 
reviewed and prioritized the suggestions from those listening sessions and then 
President’s Cabinet reviewed and fine-tuned the plan. The shared governance 
process was followed and the plan was sent to faculty, staff, College Senate, Student 
Senate and was opened to comments with a form asking for feedback. 
 
Ms. Green continued with the Strategic Plan priorities which remained constant from 
the current Strategic Plan: Student Success, Quality Programs & Services, Employee 



Page 2 of 19  

Engagement and Community Engagement. The existing goals and initiatives were 
reviewed and updated if needed. The KPI's were rewritten to be stronger, easier to 
measure and baselines were included for easier understanding of where the College 
started and where the College is going by 2027. Ms. Green reviewed the plan 
structure and shared the plan will be reported on every six months. 
 
Ms. Green mentioned action on the plan will be taken next month and asked for 
questions from the Board about the plan or the process. 

 
Trustee Daniels questioned the priorities this time as compared to the last plan. Ms. Green 
answered they are the same. Trustee Daniels requestioned if there were particular items 
that needed to be focused on. Ms. Green explained there were a few items. One was Title 
III grant-related items for disadvantaged populations, improving retention and completion, 
persistence rates and graduation rates. Another item was the desire for more community 
engagement. Under employee engagement, there was a desire to move it to the next level 
and find ways to create employee engagement opportunities, to actively engage with 
employees and create dialogue. There was also a strong voice that this is a multicultural 
county and community of students and the College needed to continue to encourage that 
employees, engagement, and information all reflect the fact that KCKCC is an inclusive 
community and an inclusive campus. 
 
Trustee Ash questioned how many of the four goals under the four priorities were 
revised. Ms. Green answered about 50% of the goals changed or evolved. Trustee Ash 
questioned how many of the initiatives changed. Ms. Green answered closer to 60% of 
the initiatives. 
 
Trustee Brune mentioned the baseline comments will be very helpful to measure the 
progress as the starting line. 
 
Dr. Mosier congratulated Ms. Green and the entire team giving appreciation to Ms. 
Green for a wonderful job leading this endeavor. Dr. Mosier commented the strategic 
plan the last three years was really good, but this one is stronger as the College learned 
what went well, what didn't go as well as was wanted and where things needed to 
tighten up. The Board has the month to provide feedback. Please email thoughts or 
suggestions to Sheryl to share with Ms. Green. 
 
Ms. Green shared the strategic plan will transition to Dr. Balog who has been working 
through this final stage with Ms. Green for a smooth handoff.  
 
Trustee Daniels requested specific next steps at the June meeting when the board 
approves the plan. Ms. Green answered the plan will be shared with the campus via 
e-mail when the semester begins and will be a focus of fall convocation. The plan will 
continue the twice a year reporting, which is one of the ways that increases 
accountability and makes it a living document to provide updates. 
 



Page 3 of 19  

Chair Criswell thanked Ms. Green for the presentation. 
 
 Chair Criswell invited Dr. Chris Meiers, Vice President of Student Affairs and Enrollment 

Management, to present the Strategic Enrollment Management Plan 2023-2028 Annual 
Update.  
o Dr. Meiers explained considerable effort has been spent revising a new 5-year 

Strategic Enrollment Management (SEM) plan that is aligned with the College’s 
Strategic Plan and can maximize opportunity. To recap the process, a SEM council was 
created and Dr. Donna Bohm, Dean of Arts, Communications and Humanities was co-
chair. Representation was important to the council which included every division, 
department and students that broke out into multiple committees that collaboratively 
worked towards specific role management initiatives with feedback opportunities. 
 
One important factor of strategic enrollment management across the College is being 
in alignment with the fulfillment of KCKCC’s mission. Student success and engagement 
are paramount, equity is everyone’s work, SEM is part science and part art, being 
strategic requires making tough decisions and the SEM plan is never done.  
 
This SEM plan, created for the Board’s review and consideration, gives the College the 
flexibility to have key performance metrics but also be able to adapt and flex towards 
economic trends and enrollment trends and to be proactive, not reactive. The 
enrollment plan interacts with all of the different planning initiatives at the College 
with the mission at the center and working in tandem. This SEM plan allowed the 
College to focus specifically on enrollment, persistence and attracting new students. 
 
Overall, it's a 5-year goal to achieve the high full-time student equivalency of 3,530 by 
fall 2028. That is approximately a 3.5% increase each year of a 15% growth, knowing 
there will be some recalibration with new campuses and other opportunities. 
 
Dr. Meiers continued with examples of the KCKCC SEM Calls to Action, key 
performance indicators aligned with the KCKCC Strategic Plan with Goal 1: Student-
Centered Processes, Goal 2: Retention and Persistence and Goal 3: 150% Completion 
Time and SEM Plan Strategies and Tactics and making SEM everyone’s business. 
 
Dr. Meiers reported the SEM council’s work is not done but will transition to an 
implementation team to start working through these strategies. Dr. Meiers asked for 
questions from the Board. 

 
Chair Criswell commented that she really likes this plan and is particularly moved by the use 
of data and technology which is one of the highest priority items when it comes to moving an 
organization forward and modernizing. It is nice to see evidence that the College is going in 
the right direction. Chair Criswell thanked Dr. Meiers for being mindful of closing equity gaps 
as that is always something that should be strived for. Dr. Meiers thanked Chair Criswell and 
shared the plan was a team effort. 
 



Page 4 of 19  

Trustee Daniels noted how often advising was mentioned in the plan and was curious what 
that will look like on campus - if every active member becomes an advisor or if that is left to 
the professional advisors. Trustee Daniels’ second point was the use of the word trauma in 
the plan. In Wyandotte County, trauma is one of the most critical health issues being faced. 
Trustee Daniels was struck that the group has recognized that and realized that affects 
students on this campus. Dr. Meiers thanked Dr. Daniels and reported the plan is about the 
continuum of care. Advising will be all hands on deck as a guided pathways approach is 
embraced where a student’s major and career inspiration are the focus. The intent is to make 
sure that every employee is capable of helping support the students. 
 
Dr. Mosier gave kudos to Dr. Meiers’ team and added the College has become an institution 
that does activities based on implemented plans and strategies. The College has become 
more data informed and utilizes the available data. KCKCC has become an institution that is 
focused on developing and implementing strong plans to stay on track over the course of 
multiple years. 
 
 Chair Criswell invited Mr. Andrew Guevara-Alatorre, Student Senate President, to present 

the Proposed New KCKCC Alma Mater. 
o Mr. Guevara-Alatorre played a recording of the new proposed KCKCC alma mater. Mr. 

Guevara-Alatorre also proposed the title of (All) with Pride as everyone should be 
proud to be part of KCKCC. Mr. Guevara-Alatorre discussed the timeline of the song 
and title going to the senates and to the Board to provide feedback and next steps of 
Board approval, official recordings and sharing it with the campus. Mr. Guevara-
Alatorre gave thanks to the group that helped with the idea and the process. 
 
Mr. Guevara-Alatorre asked for questions from the Board. The Board and Dr. Mosier 
all gave kudos to Mr. Guevara-Alatorre and all involved. 
 

 Chair Criswell invited Mr. Jerry Pope, Vice President of Academic Affairs, to present the 
DownBeat Magazine’s 2023 Student Music Awards. 
o Mr. Pope was joined by music professors Mr. John Stafford and Dr. Justin Binek and 

pointed out the banner behind the podium listing the awards won. 
 
Mr. Stafford presented the 2022-23 music and audio engineering highlights. 
 
Dr. Binek presented the 2023 DownBeat Magazine student music awards pointing out 
this is legitimate recognition from the highest circulation jazz magazine. 
 

The Board and Dr. Mosier all gave kudos and appreciation to Mr. Stafford and Dr. Binek 
for their commitment and the music department’s commitment to the students. Dr. 
Mosier reported he shared this information with a writer at the American Association of 
Community Colleges (AACC) so it will published in the AACC journal soon. Dr. Mosier 
then presented a commemorative plaque to Mr. Pope, Mr. Stafford and Dr. Binek for the 
awards won and the hard work of the faculty and students. 
 



Page 5 of 19  

7. Communications: Chair Criswell invited Dr. Greg Mosier to communicate the Rita Blitt 
Sculptures Unveiling event. Dr. Mosier shared there is a special event next Thursday, May 
25th at noon for Rita Blitt, the world-renowned artist, who has donated a lot of the 
drawings and paintings on campus, as well as the design work of one of her drawings into 
the sculpture “Ascension” which is in front of Centennial Hall. She has turned two others of 
her drawings into sculptures that will be installed next week and will be unveiled on the 
25th, weather permitting. Rita recently visited the campus with a biographer that is writing 
her life story. The event will be live streamed. The sculptures will be outside the Learning 
Commons and between the Jewell building and the pond. 

 
8. Board Committee Reports: Chair Criswell invited the Board Committees to report. 
 On behalf of the Board Finance Committee (BFC), Vice Chair Isnard, Chair of the BFC, 

reported at this month’s meeting he was joined by Trustees Ash and Brune. The 
financial statement reports show a decrease in the net position in April by about $4.8 
million. This was not a reflection on any of the great work done by the Board or the 
administration in managing those resources, it is the ups and downs throughout the 
year of revenues that happen in generally small windows, it was expected.  
 
The College was able to make another investment during April in the form of a $3.5 
million CD with Security Bank. There is also another investment that is in process of 
$3 million with Commerce Bank with the rate at over 5% compared to the rate this 
time last year being only .5%. 
 
The BFC passed a few items for approval on the recommendations for payment - 
agreements and payments being finalized for Copaken Brooks and PGAV to the 
owners Rep and for architectural services for the downtown campus project. 
 
Lastly, Dr. Kneuvean will be presenting an approval for Novak Birks to continue as the 
College’s and the Foundation’s financial auditor. 
 

Hearing no questions, Chair Criswell called for a motion to accept the report. Trustee 
Brune made the motion. Trustee Ash seconded the motion. The Motion Carried. 

 
 On behalf of the Board Policy Committee (BPC), Trustee Hoskins Sutton, Chair of the 

BPC, announced the committee will report later in the meeting. 
 

 On behalf of the Board Community Engagement Committee (BCEC), Trustee Brown, 
Chair of the BCEC, reported the BCEC has been working diligently to make sure the 
community knows what Kansas City Kansas Community College is doing. The BCEC has 
had a meeting with Livable Neighborhoods and Leadership 2000, with two other 
meetings scheduled with neighborhood groups. The intent is to make the rounds in 
the community to inform them the College is building downtown. Trustee Brune 
reported the BCEC has met with a little over 100 people in the last three weeks. 
 

Chair Criswell asked if the presentation has been shared with the folks met with. Trustee 



Page 6 of 19  

Brune answered yes and the BCEC also shares the one-page flyer with the community, 
which thanks to Ms. Green and staff the flyer is now available in Spanish. 
 
Chair Criswell called for a motion to accept the report. Trustee Daniels made the motion. 
Vice Chair Isnard seconded the motion. The Motion Carried. 

 
 As the Association of Community College Trustees (ACCT) Delegate and as the Kansas 

Association of Community College Trustees (KACCT) Delegate, Trustee Ash reported 
the Kansas legislature had an interesting session. It is good news for the community 
colleges and some dollars the College will get. Heather Morgan, KACCT Executive 
Director, sent a final report about that, Trustee Ash will forward it to the Board. The 
next KACCT meeting is in June in Dodge City, Kansas. Sheryl has been sharing 
information about the ACCT meeting later in the year. Board members that are 
considering that notify her to take advantage of early registrations. 
 
Trustee Hoskins Sutton reported the ACCT Diversity, Equity and Inclusion committee 
is ready to have the meeting on October 7, 2023, so she is already registered for the 
conference. 
 
Trustee Ash collaborated with Dr. Mosier regarding Heather Morgan’s evaluation. Mr. 
Arlen Leiker has sent the combined final evaluation that went to Heather. She does an 
incredible job with a great ready-response team with the community college 
presidents and financial officers. Heather could use better IT support, a better 
website and social media presence. Dr. Mosier agreed she does an incredible job and 
she could use some additional support. If a financial support request came through 
for her support, Dr. Mosier would be in favor of that. 
 
Chair Criswell called for a motion to accept the report. Trustee Brown made the 
motion. Vice Chair Isnard seconded the motion. The Motion Carried. 

 
9. Consent Agenda: Chair Criswell called for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

Trustee Brune made the motion. Trustee Ash seconded the motion. The Motion Carried. 
 

10. Student Senate Report: Chair Criswell called for the Student Senate report. Mr. Andrew 
Guevara-Alatorre, Student Senate President, reported the following –  
 Introductions of the Student Senate representatives for next year. Ms. Elizabeth 

Daniels, President, Ms. Eden Barnes, Vice President, Mr. Tyler Luken, Secretary, and 
Mr. Z. Coffie, Treasurer. Online elections were May 1 – 5 and they went well with 
about 30 votes. 
 
Ms. Elizabeth Daniels introduced herself as the future Student Senate President for 
next year and expressed excitement to work with everyone and keep the Board 
updated on everything with Student Senate next year. Ms. Daniels is a chapter officer 
of Phi Theta Kappa, the Honor Society on campus; a member of Fringe Benefits of 
Education, an organization on campus; and a resident assistant at the dorms.  



Page 7 of 19  

Ms. Eden Barnes introduced herself as the future Vice President of Student Senate 
for next year and expressed excitement to meet the Board again and to work more 
closely with the Board and with Ms. Daniels. 
 
Mr. Guevara-Alatorre reported the Easter event was on Friday, April 7th from 5:30 to 
7:30 at the TEC center with 141 attendees, 75 children and 66 adults. Food was 
served and the community had fun.  
 
The Student Senate/President’s Cabinet Shadow day was fun. There was a lunch, a 
tour of the future downtown campus with a visit inside the church including 
explanations of what will be repurposed and a policy review meeting with Ms. 
Christina McGee. 
 
Budgets for the clubs were distributed for the upcoming school year.  
 
Mr. Guevara-Alatorre shared a nice photo Student Senate and expressed sadness that 
it is his last year. Every member is amazing and Mr. Guevara-Alatorre is happy for the 
next year’s Student Senate. 
 
Mr. Guevara-Alatorre asked for questions from the Board. 
 

Chair Criswell thanked Mr. Guevara-Alatorre for the excellent report and congratulated 
the newly elected officers. Vice Chair Isnard gave congratulations to the new incoming 
leadership and thanked Mr. Guevara-Alatorre for everything he did for the Student 
Senate, his time and service. Trustee Ash expressed Mr. Guevara-Alatorre did an amazing 
job this school year. 

 
Trustee Ash motioned to accept the report. Trustee Hoskins Sutton seconded the 
motion. The Motion Carried. 
 

11. President’s Report: Chair Criswell called for the President’s report. Dr. Greg Mosier 
reported the following –  
 It is Commencement week - one of the most exciting weeks of the of the year. The 

College has a lot of events going on to celebrate student success. The two 
ceremonies are very full and will be held in the field house. The 2:00 p.m. ceremony is 
the Associate of Applied Science degrees and technical certificates. This ceremony is 
at max capacity. The 7:00 p.m. ceremony is the Associate of Arts, Associate of 
Science, Associate of General Studies, etc. There are a lot of students graduating this 
year. 
 
The physical therapy assistant program started their pinning ceremony at the 
Technical Education Center a few minutes ago. Well wishes have been sent to them. 
 
Tomorrow night is the 7th cohort for the Industrial Maintenance Technology short-
term certificate that is offered as a customized training. Students also get college 



Page 8 of 19  

credit for it, so they can continue beyond the certificate and get a longer certificate 
or go right into the automation engineering technology program. At the Leavenworth 
County Development Council Board meeting the end of last week it was mentioned 
Leavenworth County has a great need for mechanical technicians. They know about 
this program. The program is also 50% funded by Workforce AID through the 
Department of Commerce so it is a great opportunity for businesses.  
 
The Nursing Pinning Ceremony is tomorrow at 7:00 p.m. in the field house. 
 
The GED celebration will take place at 7:00 p.m. on Tuesday, May 23 in the 
Performing Arts Center. 
 
Two weeks ago, the annual Employee Recognition Ceremony was held. It was a nice 
event, thanked all who put that together. One hundred eighteen faculty and staff 
members from the Blue Devil family were celebrated, totaling 2,510 years of service. 
Seven individuals retired. 
 
Thursday is the Rita Blitt event. 
 
Last week, the Economic Development and Finance (EDF) subcommittee of the Unified 
Government passed the proposal for the Unified Government to sell the parcels of land 
to KCKCC that are needed for the downtown project. That request will go to the full 
Commission on the May 25. The Home Field project presentation was given that night 
to the EDF. It is over a $900 million project in an entertainment district, including a 
Margaritaville restaurant and hotel, Big Shot, which is similar to a Top Golf center that 
will have 60 bays - the largest in the Midwest. There will be an indoor amphitheater 
with 55,000 square feet, an outdoor amphitheater, all sorts of indoor and outdoor 
swimming activities, and eight baseball fields where recruiters can watch high 
schoolers. This is terrific new for Wyandotte County for another billion-dollar project in 
the next five years. It is located near the old Schlitterbahn water park and Camping 
World and builds far north towards the soccer practice fields. 
 
This morning, Dr. Balog and I had the opportunity to join the Unified Government 
Vision Summit for Plan KC, which is a strategic planning venture by the Unified 
Government (UG) and brought in community members from across the County. The 
UG has good ideas in motion and the College will continue to work with that group.  
 
The Federal Economic Development Administration released a notice of funding 
opportunity for the regional technology and innovation hubs. This is being worked on 
with the Kansas Department of Commerce for $150 million grant application to have 
a hub in Kansas. The location is unknown but is being determined. That deadline is 
August 15th.  
 
There are a lot of really wonderful things happening in KCKCC and around the College. 
Dr. Mosier gave thanks to everyone for the hard work this academic year stating it has 



Page 9 of 19  

been a great success and shared he cannot express his gratitude enough to all the 
faculty, staff and to the Board for all the work and support that is given to the College 
all the time. 
 

Trustee Daniels motioned to accept the report. Trustee Ash seconded the motion.  
The Motion Carried. 

 
12. Vice President Academic Affairs Report: Chair Criswell called for the Vice President of 

Academic Affairs report. Mr. Jerry Pope reported the following – 
 The Writing Center celebrated National Poetry Month with a poetry contest, a poetry 

reading and a poem in your pocket celebration around the campfire area in the 
Learning Commons. 
 
The Center for Teaching Excellence and Tom Grady, Director, hosted events for 
faculty. There were academic symposiums, the TEACH Award recipients were 
recognized (Todd Gordon, Biology, and Kristofer Paul-White, Health Professions), 
sessions approaching universal design for learning to support students with 
assignments, “First Fridays” were professional development sessions focused on 
hybrid and HyFlex teaching and the pedagogy “The Blue Devil Faculty Academy” which 
is a year-long academy orientation program for new full-time faculty. This academy 
was the result of negotiations two years ago that gives release time for faculty to 
attend the academy their first year. The College is working to support the faculty at all 
stages of their development and all stages of their tenure. 
 
There were 73 ensembles participating in the Jazz Summit that was held over four days 
with high school and middle school groups from Seattle to Saint Louis to Tulsa. There 
were approximately 1,500 musical students from high schools on campus during those 
days. On April 25, Grammy-nominated guest artist, säje gave a wonderful performance. A 
visiting performer, songwriter and arranger lead the students in the concert with singing 
her songs, her music or her arrangements. There were about 125 students on the stage. 
 
The Adjunct Appreciation Expo was an exciting event. KCKCC is working on getting the 
adjunct instructors as engaged as possible in events at the College. 
 
A dramatic mural by art student Justice Burris was completed in the art studio.  
 
Students that won SkillsUSA state-level gold medals are going to Atlanta in June to participate. 
 
The nursing department is doing some new things to recognize students and there 
were over 60 nominations for the “Nursing Superstar” award. Awards for an RN 
student, a PN student, an RN faculty and a PN faculty will be announced tomorrow at 
the nurse pinning. 
Mr. Pope participated in meetings with the Commission on Accreditation for 
Respiratory Care. The program should be reaccredited fully for the next 10 years. Mr. 
Pope gave kudos to the faculty, students and the leadership in that area. Mr. Pope 



Page 10 of 19  

gave congratulations to Tammie Jones, Respiratory Therapy faculty, on her upcoming 
retirement. 
 
A biotechnology student and dual high school enrollee, Shayne McRae, was awarded 
a $10,000 scholarship: the KC Royals Charities Scholarship, that was presented to only 
five students.  
 
Mr. Pope gave congratulation on the upcoming retirements of early childhood 
professor Kathi McGowan and psychology professor Dr. Antonio Cutolo-Ring. They 
are retiring after 20 and 30 years of service respectively.  
 
Mr. Pope asked for questions from the Board. 
 

Trustee Hoskins Sutton gave congratulations to PTK on their awards, thanks to Online 
Education for the addition of the newsletter that gave faculty information about the 
online class and kudos to Professor Tom Grady for all he does.  
 
Trustee Hoskins Sutton questioned the term HyFlex. Mr. Pope gave an example of HyFlex 
being when the faculty member is in the classroom with students, there are other 
students at the Pioneer Career Center taking that same class (that allows the College to 
offer low enrollment classes at Pioneer Career Center) and students can opt to attend 
the class from work. The instructor uses interactive technology, thanks to Dr. Jelena 
Ozegovic. KCKCC is identifying champions to help other faculty members get engaged in 
using HyFlex. Tom Grady is invested in offering the training and best practices so that 
faculty can utilize this pedagogy in their classrooms.  
 
Trustee Hoskins Sutton also commented the number of Skills USA medals received by the 
students was impressive. 
 
Chair Criswell called for a motion to accept the report. Trustee Daniels made the motion. 
Trustee Brown seconded the motion. The Motion Carried. 

 
13. Vice President Student Affairs and Enrollment Management Report: Chair Criswell called 

for the Vice President of Student Affairs and Enrollment Management report. Dr. Chris 
Meiers reported the following – 
 There are 511 students walking commencement at both ceremonies. Preparations for 

commencement have been a focus this month. Upper Jewell Lounge will be an 
overflow live viewing location, lunch will be downstairs in Lower Jewell. 
 
Introduced new athletic director, Mr. Greg McVey, who started last week. Mr. McVey 
expressed gratefulness to be back in the state of Kansas and the opportunity to 
continue the positive things being done at KCKCC. Mr. McVey commented athletics is 
an extension of the learning process as students learn through participation in sport 
and a focus of developing the student physically, academically and socially. Mr. 
McVey expressed appreciation for being part of KCKCC and the Board welcomed him. 



Page 11 of 19  

Summer enrollment is up 2.12% in headcount, credit hours are down 1.04%. It is 
anticipated with the semester winding down there will be some slides. There are 
timing lags in the fall enrollment, specifically last year there was a tremendous 
amount of work for high school enrollments for the Technical Education Center (TEC) 
locations in April which created a swing in the report; this report is on par with the 
previous years. With the SEM plan, a group of key stakeholders meets every Monday 
to review the reports. There has been progress for the fall enrollment and how a 
more proactive student enrollment management practice has been created. 
 
Grade reporting instructions have been improved and a daily report is distributed to 
the deans showing specifically which grades are submitted and not submitted. Today 
is the grading deadline. This allows a baseline to be created to determine where to 
start making specific improvements related to missing grades and no-show grades. 
This has been favorably received by the deans. 
 
Dr. Meiers mentioned there are many activities listed in the report and asked for 
questions from the Board. 
 

Trustee Hoskins Sutton thanked Dr. Meiers and team for the improvements on the final 
grade submission - seeing that progress is being made. 
 
Chair Criswell called for a motion to accept the report. Trustee Ash made the motion. 
Trustee Hoskins Sutton seconded the motion. The Motion Carried. 

 
14. Chief Marketing and Institutional Image Officer Report:  Chair Criswell called for the Chief 

Marketing and Institutional Image Office report. Ms. Kris Green reported the following –  
 This has been a busy and celebratory month for the marketing team. 

 
Marketing spent several hours creating 1-minute videos for fire science, cosmetology, 
nail technician, computer support, cybersecurity and electrical technology to be used 
on social media and on the website. A video will be shared next month. 
 
Marketing supported Perkins marketing funding with pull up banners for each of the 
programs.  
 
There are two supply trailers that both Pioneer Career Center and Technical 
Education Center use for different onsite work. Those trailers are being vinyl wrapped 
so they are an advertisement wherever they go.  
 
For the enrollment marketing plan, $141,700 was invested in enrollment marketing 
for the summer and fall enrollment which is about 20% more than was invested last 
year. KCKCC is making the shift from brand advertising to a more enrollment-focused 
advertising to support the strategic enrollment plan. 
 
The College is a sponsor of Rock the Dotte. One strategy for the Centennial 



Page 12 of 19  

celebration is to own Wyandotte County celebrations. Rock the Dotte is a 3-part 
concert series at Azura Amphitheater. KCKCC was at the first concert and handed out 
over 1,000 handheld fans - it was a sea of red that said Horns Up. KCKCC will attend 
the Leavenworth and Wyandotte County Fairs this summer.  
 
Ms. Green has worked with several steering committees to organize plans for the 
Centennial celebration year. The plan will be launched at Convocation. There will be 
an internal birthday celebration at all three sites around the date of September 10th, 
which is the official day classes started in 1923. There will be birthday cake and the 
opportunity to collect items for a time capsule. In April there will be an event on 
campus to showcase the different departments and ways that KCKCC is engaged with 
the Wyandotte County community. The College will be hosting events throughout the 
year to bring alumni, students and community members together as part of that 
Centennial celebration. There will also be a Centennial magazine.  
 
Ms. Green gave kudos and thanks to the marketing team for the quality photography 
and videography for commencement, in publications and the board room photo wall. 
 
Ms. Green asked for questions from the Board. 
 

The Board thanked Ms. Green for the great job on marketing. Chair Criswell shared her 
impression and gave thanks for the concerted effort to move from a brand-focused 
advertising to enrollment-focused as a modern approach to the way potential students 
receive and respond to advertising. 
 
Trustee Daniels motioned to accept the report. Trustee Ash seconded the motion. 
The Motion Carried. 

 
15. Chief Financial Officer Report: Chair Criswell called for the Chief Financial Officer report. Dr. 

Shelley Kneuvean reported the following – 
 The highlights for the monthly financials are that things are on track as expected. There was 

an increase in revenues of about $1.2 million due to tuition and fees for summer and fall 
enrollment and financial aid that was processed for Pell funds, work study funds and grant 
funds. Expenditures are on track with regard to the monthly burn. Next month there will be 
a slight uptick in personnel cost related to the retro pay for the faculty now that the contract 
is done. The retro pay will go back to July 1st. That was budgeted and is within the budget. 
 
There has been progress on the Certificate of Deposits (CDs), the College closed on the 
Commerce Bank CD. Dr. Mosier and Dr. Kneuvean are determining if the College can 
make more investments that will allow KCKCC to have enough liquidity but also allow the 
institution to take advantage of this unusual market. Those recommendations would be 
presented to the Board Finance Committee and the full Board for direction. 
 
The division is working hard putting together the budget. There is preliminary information 
on state aid which, for the tiered and non-tiered, decreases but KCKCC will get additional 



Page 13 of 19  

one-time money assuming all things get approved. The funds will be $250,000 for 
cybersecurity, a $919,000 grant for apprenticeships and additional money towards capital 
improvements from the state based on a new formula they did. The property tax 
valuations will be in mid-June. On the expense side of the budget, trends are being 
reviewed and it is being determined where the College needs to spend money that aligns 
with the strategic plan and the strategic enrollment plan. 
 
KCKCC invests in its employees and four employees participated in the Kansas Community 
Colleges Leadership Institute (KCCLI). Lesley Strohschein, Controller, was one participant. 
It is a remarkable program where participants learn a lot, learn leadership skills and visit 
all the community colleges throughout Kansas building networks of colleagues to work 
with, to get information from and to share information. Dr. Kneuvean expressed a sincere 
appreciation for the investment the College made in those employees. 
 
The executive board room remodel was completed with a few small things to still fix. The 
room is more functional with the technology that was implemented. 
 
Facility Services collaborated with Information Services to add several Wi-Fi drops at the 
field house before the graduation ceremonies.  
 
The College Police staffing been successful in the last two months and is now down to two 
vacancies. The final process includes background checks, candidates that have post 
certification with an expedited process and three individuals that are at the police 
academy. Dr. Kneuvean gave appreciation for the work of Human Resources and the help 
of Marketing for creating a brochure about this career choice. The process has also been 
a success due to the leadership Chief Putzke. 
 
Dr. Kneuvean asked for questions from the Board. 
 

Hearing none, Chair Criswell called for a motion to accept the report. Vice Chair Isnard made 
the motion. Trustee Brune seconded the motion. The Motion Carried. 

 
16. Chief Human Resources Officer Report:  Chair Criswell called for the Chief Human 

Resources Officer report. Ms. Christina McGee reported the following – 
 May is an exciting time for the Human Resources (HR) office. HR planned the Employee 

Recognition Ceremony to celebrate and acknowledge individuals’ years of service 
milestones, retirements, Employee of the Year award and the Henry Louis teaching award. 
Several individuals were recognized during the ceremony. Ms. McGee recognized and 
thanked the HR team for the amount of effort that went into the event. Ms. McGee also 
thanked Media Services, Marketing and Facility Services for the work done for the event. 
 
Ms. McGee announced the hiring of Michael Torres as the Director of Diversity, 
Equity and Inclusion. He started yesterday and is getting acclimated to the College, 
the culture and meeting individuals - and he volunteered to help with graduation.  
 



Page 14 of 19  

In late April, a survey was sent to employees to gather data on types of professional 
development and days that work best for a professional development event HR is 
developing. Anyone can attend but the focus is on staff employees that do not have 
an opportunity during convocation week to participate in professional development. 
This will be a half- or full-day in the summer. 
 
HR is updating the landing page for career services to be more inviting, streamlining 
the information and overall making it look more appealing. HR will work with the 
marketing team to enhance the look of the HR content provided. 
 
Ms. McGee asked for questions from the Board. 

                                                                                                                                                                                          
Trustee Hoskins Sutton commented the benefits coordinator’s scripts to answer benefits 
questions is a good idea. Ms. McGee commented that idea was based on feedback received 
from new employees. Depending upon when an employee starts, there may be a lag when 
that information is given in the monthly new hire orientation. Individuals can always contact 
the benefits coordinator anytime with questions, but these videos will provide on-demand 
information. The scripts are developed and the videos need to be shot. 

 
Trustee Hoskins Sutton motioned to accept the report. Trustee Ash seconded the motion. 
The Motion Carried. 

 
17. Chief Information Officer Report: Chair Criswell called for the Chief Information Officer 

report. Mr. Peter Gabriel reported the following – 
 Mr. Gabriel thanked Media Services for their work for this meeting and all the work 

they will do over the next couple of days for the commencement ceremonies.  
 
Mr. Gabriel thanked Facility Services for all the work they did helping to get the Wi-Fi 
upgraded in the field house. The access points increased from seven to 19 based on 
the number of people that can be held in the field house. This project was pushed to 
be ready for the KCKCC commencement ceremonies and for the Kansas City, KS 
public schools’ ceremonies on Friday and Sunday in the field house. 
 
Microsoft licensing was acquired. It is a service that was announced over a year ago 
for enterprise. The licensing takes the burden off the Information Services staff about 
the patches, security updates and feature updates to all KCKCC devices. The burden is 
on Microsoft in the cloud, similar to a device that is not on a company network and 
receives the regular Windows updates. This will help the College update devices and 
help manage the devices when the devices leave the network. The service was turned 
on yesterday after classes ended. 
 
Laptop checkouts were due back yesterday. Mr. Gabriel thanked the computer 
services staff for all the work they are doing, checking those laptops back in and all 
the work they will do over the next two weeks to turn those laptops around, refresh 
them, update them and get them ready for the laptop checkouts that will start on 



Page 15 of 19  

May 30th for the summer semester.  
 
Mr. Gabriel asked for questions from the Board. 
 

Trustee Ash questioned how to watch graduation online. Mr. Gabriel answered there will 
be a link on the home page of the KCKCC website.  
 
Trustee Hoskins Sutton mentioned during COVID there were a large number of computer 
checkouts and questioned if the number was still large. Mr. Gabriel answered in the fall 
and in the spring the average is about 250 to 300 computer checkouts. The summer is a 
much smaller number. Dr. Mosier mentioned it speaks to the needs of the students as 
they really do not have a high-quality computer or any computer at home. This gives 
them more opportunity. It is a lot of work on Information Services with the cleanup, turn 
around, check-in and check-out but it is very much needed by the students. 

 
Chair Criswell called for a motion to accept the report. Trustee Brown made the motion. 
Trustee Ash seconded the motion. The Motion Carried. 

 
18. Unfinished Business: Chair Criswell invited Dr. Greg Mosier to present the Downtown 

Project Biannual Update. Dr. Mosier reported the following –  
 Both environmental studies have been completed. The environmental Phase Two 

study shows there is no additional soil contamination that needs to be cleaned up. 
Currently, the surveying of the entire block to the opposite side of the street is being 
done by BHC Engineering, a local company. Hopefully, by fall 2025 this beautiful 
building or something like it will be downtown.  
 
To help share why this project is being built downtown, Dr. Mosier shared information 
about Poverty by Census Track explaining the poverty level of Wyandotte County. In 
the east/northeast side, approximately 50% of the adults living in that part of the 
county live in poverty and a zip code should not determine one’s level of success in 
life. Other socioeconomic indicators, repeat this exact same pattern. In the County, 
there are 10 zip codes, four on the west and six on the east. People who can speak 
English well enough to obtain and maintain a job, there are about 2,500 that do not 
speak English on the western side of the county but about 20,000 that do not speak 
English on the eastern side of the county indicating a huge ESL (English as a Second 
Language) need. There are about 4,000 age 25 plus people on the western side that 
work full-time and live in poverty and on the eastern side there are about 18,000 that 
work two or three part-time jobs making minimum wage and still cannot get out of 
poverty. That affects the children and the future of the County. Almost 250% to 300% 
more children live in poverty on the eastern side of the county than the western side. 
That is alarming. Regarding post-secondary education attainment, only about 9% to 
10% of the people living in the eastern side of the County have a two-year degree or 
above. Education is one of the greatest economic indicators for success. On the 
eastern side, household median income is about 40% or half of what it is on the 
western side. Boosting college degrees decreases inequality and it lowers poverty but 



Page 16 of 19  

it also increases health. Employers are still struggling to find skilled workers. Serving as 
the chair of the board for Wyandotte Economic Development Council, Dr. Mosier has 
knowledge of about 7,500 jobs per day, with an average salary of about $44,000, are 
unfilled in Wyandotte County. There are a lot of high demand jobs in the area. There is 
a global talent shortage, 77% of companies have a skills gap meaning they cannot find 
skilled workers for the jobs. Fifty percent to 60% of jobs across Kansas require more 
than a high school education but less than a four-year degree – that is the community 
college's mission. In 2030, the talent shortage will cost the United States $8.5 billion 
annually. 
 
Dr. Mosier shared a photo of the current lot of the downtown site stating the 
buildings have been abandoned for about 20 to 30 years so there is a lot of work to 
be done and it is getting started. Dr. Mosier shared another photo of the breakdown 
of the different lots of the bottom half of the block and explained the status of each 
lot. The top right hand corner which is the dirt parking lot area and the bottom right 
hand corner which is also a dirt area is owned by the Unified Government (UG), it is 
not land bank. This is the land requested by Dr. Mosier last week at the Economic 
Development and Finance subcommittee of the Unified Government and will be 
taken to the full commission on May 25th. At the top, currently that northern half 
from the alley that travels east and west is all one lot. That section is being asked to 
be broken in half and the College would own the right side and will be requested first 
right of refusal from the Willa Gill Center to the left. The church and the old Firestone 
burnt out building is owned by the land bank. The UG owned land is in progress and 
hopefully that will be transferred to the College after May 25th. The College also has 
options in for the transition of the land bank property to KCKCC so then the College 
will own all of that bottom southern half of the block. Then with the parking lot on 
the top right, that will get all put into one lot so that the project can be built on it and 
get rid of all the easements in between. 
 
After about six months into the project, it was learned the 7th Street Church was a 
local historical landmark. A lot of work was done with the Landmarks Commission and 
approval received November 2021 to pull down the church carefully, save the 
historical elements and put them back in the new building. This was at the point in 
time when a building permit was required to deconstruct the church. There will not 
be a building permit issued for about nine months, meaning the College would not 
open by August 2025, the project would be set back an entire year. A couple weeks 
before the UG meeting, Dr. Mosier presented to the Landmark Commission with a 
proposed new construction timeline so that the historical elements can be taken out, 
restored, readied and measured to be put into the new facility. Dr. Mosier shared 
renderings showing uses of the stained glass, the red brick that is salvageable, the 
foundation stones, possibly the wooden floor, the stanchions and the trusses from 
the sanctuary area. 
 
Dr. Mosier continued with rendering photos explaining there will be a history wall 
based off the historical wall at the main campus of the College. Other salvageable 



Page 17 of 19  

items will be an 18-inch inset doorway from the basement of the church, a cabinet 
for storage and utilization and key stained glass windows that will be backlit in the 
conference room. 3D scanning will begin in about a month. In August or September, 
the church will slowly be taken down. 
 
Dr. Mosier showed Rita Blitt’s “Destiny” sculpture that will be at the downtown site. This 
is an 8-foot tall, 6-foot wide, 14 inches deep sculpture with three discrete elements 
coming together as one. The project has ended up with three discrete partners coming 
together as one to serve the community. It is very symbolic as it is the destiny of the 
church and this location to serve the community for the next 100 years. 
 
The project reached the fundraising milestone to move the project forward. Dr. 
Mosier shared the anticipated project timeline and outlined writing the Request For 
Proposal, doing the paperwork, the selective demolition, the full demolition of the 
property and the construction with substantial completion by mid-June 2025. Dr. 
Mosier shared financial information showing KCKCC’s total funding goal of $48 
million, the College invested $13 million, $26.1 million has been raised with the 
capital campaign with a balance remaining of $9 million. There is new $3 million 
earmark requested with Dr. Mosier having a few $1 million meetings coming up. Like 
the beautiful Centennial Hall that gives students pride and a living environment the 
students deserve, this project is an investment in downtown. From a taxpayer’s 
perspective, at the current rate, the College is only paying $0.33 on the dollar to build 
the new facility. For the mill levy and Wyandotte County, which is about 52% to 53% 
of the College’s revenue, taxpayers are only paying about $0.18 on the dollar to have 
this building and the services that will be provided in the heart of downtown where 
people need it the most. 
 
The College’s economic impact study showed for every dollar invested in KCKCC, the 
return per year was $1.30, that is a 30% return. The stock market average return is 
10% per year. Broken down by how much of the College’s dollars are being invested 
at $0.33, equals a 200% Return On Investment (ROI) and at the County taxpayers’ 
level it is an immediate 300% return on investment for the community.  
 
This project was a vision that is becoming a reality. Dr. Mosier thanked the staff and 
the people brought on to the project. There will be action taking place early fall and 
there will be a groundbreaking ceremony around the time KCKCC turns 100 years old. 
The groundbreaking date is September 8th at 2:00 p.m.  
 
Dr. Mosier asked for questions from the Board. 
 
Chair Criswell expressed these are exciting times. Hearing no questions, Chair Criswell 
called for a motion to accept the report. Trustee Ash made the motion. Trustee 
Brown seconded the motion. The Motion Carried. 

 
 



Page 18 of 19  

19. New Business: 
 Chair Criswell called for the presentation of KCKCC Policies. Trustee Linda Hoskins 

Sutton, Chair of the Board Policy Committee, presented the following –  
o The policies were provided in the Board packet. The Smoke and Tobacco-Free 

College (Policy: 1.11) is an update to the policy that was first approved in August 
of 2015 since so much has changed with the different versions of what is 
considered smoking and in conjunction with the Clean Air Act. The Consensual 
Relationships (Policy: 5.10) is a completely new policy.  
 
Trustee Hoskins Sutton asked for questions or comments from the Board. Hearing 
none, Trustee Hoskins Sutton gave a reminder that the Board Policy Committee 
does not meet in the summer because the senates do not meet and the senates 
are a critical part of policy approval. The next Board Policy Committee meeting 
will be in September. Trustee Hoskins Sutton gave thanks to everyone on the 
committee for all of the work done to make sure there are policies to guide the 
College. 
 
Chair Criswell expressed this was excellent work and expressed appreciation for 
Trustee Hoskins Sutton and the committee. Chair Criswell called for a motion to 
approve the KCKCC policies of Smoke and Tobacco-Free College (Policy: 1.11) and 
Consensual Relationships (Policy: 5.10). Trustee Daniels made the motion. Trustee 
Brune seconded the motion. The Motion Carried. 

 
 Chair Criswell called for the presentation of the Approval of Employment of Auditor to 

Audit All Accounts. Dr. Shelley Kneuvean presented the following –  
o This is a recommendation to engage the services of Novak Birks who has been 

KCKCC’s long-term auditor. Novak Birks has proposed a total cost of $48,995, about 
2.5% or $1,195 more than last year. Given inflation, this is the normal cost of doing 
business increase. The same scope of services typically done will be done. The 
College was satisfied with the work done in the past and recommend that the 
College retain Novak Birks for this next year. This would be for the College and the 
Foundation. The Foundation Board has already accepted appointing Novak Birks.  
 
Chair Criswell called for a motion to approve the employment of the auditor, Novak 
Birks. Trustee Ash made the motion. Hoskins Sutton seconded the motion. The 
Motion Carried. 

 
 Chair Criswell called for the presentation of the Approval of Resolution(s) of Notice of 

Intent to Nonrenew Contract of Employment. Dr. Greg Mosier presented the following –  
o As a college offering classes to the community, the administration makes sure the 

classes and staffing meets the needs and the enrollment demands of the 
community. This is one of the more difficult times of the year for all but as there has 
been enrollment declines adjustments need to be made to match that and be able 
to also be good fiscal agents of the community. The College has positions that are 
recommended for an Intent to Nonrenew Contracts. This has nothing to do with 



Page 19 of 19  

performance or any type of activity, it is purely based on declining enrollment of the 
College in specific areas.  
 
Dr. Mosier continued, as a follow up from the executive sessions he called for a 
recommendation to nonrenew the contract of employment for faculty member Dr. 
Tamela Ice. Vice Chair Isnard made the motion. Trustee Daniels seconded the 
motion. Chair Criswell called for a roll call vote. All members voted yes. The Motion 
Carried. 
 
Dr. Mosier continued, the second action, based purely on enrollment, and called for 
a recommendation to nonrenew the contract of employment for the faculty position 
and faculty member Dr. Teri Huggins. Trustee Ash made the motion. Trustee Brune 
seconded the motion. Chair Criswell called for a roll call vote. All members voted 
yes. The Motion Carried. 
 
Dr. Mosier continued, the third item, again based on enrollment, and called for a 
recommendation to nonrenew the contract of employment for faculty member Dr. 
Gena Ross. Trustee Daniels made the motion. Trustee Brune seconded the motion. 
Chair Criswell called for a roll call vote. All members voted yes. The Motion Carried. 
 
Dr. Mosier gave appreciation for the service these faculty members have given the 
College and mentioned the faculty members do have an opportunity to claim classes 
as classes become available. The College looks forward to every opportunity to try 
and make that happen for the faculty members. 

 
 Chair Criswell called for the presentation of the Proposed Board of Trustees 

Meeting Schedule for FY2024. Dr. Greg Mosier presented the following –  
o In the Board packet, is the meeting schedule for fiscal year 2024. It follows the 

same pattern as this year. It is shared at this meeting to allow time for review. 
Please email Sheryl for corrections or questions. There are nine regular 
evening meetings and three morning meetings with those that have an 
asterisk being an exception to the third Tuesday of the month for various 
reasons. The Board will take action on this schedule at the next Board meeting. 

 
20. Adjournment: Chair Criswell called for a motion to adjourn the meeting. Trustee Brown 

made the motion. Vice Chair Isnard seconded the motion. The Motion Carried. 
 

The meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
ATTEST: _____________________________________ 

Chairperson, Ms. Evelyn Criswell 
   

_____________________________________ 
Secretary, Dr. Greg Mosier  



Page 1 of 3 
 

 

Mission Statement: Inspire individuals & enrich our community one student at a time. 
 

Vision Statement: Be a national leader in academic excellence & partner of choice in the 
communities we serve. 

 
 

KANSAS CITY KANSAS COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Board of Trustees Special Meeting 
Tuesday, May 16, 2023 – 4:30 P.M. 

 
 

CONSENT AGENDA – Item A1 
Meeting Minutes 
 

1. Call to Order: Chairwoman Evelyn Criswell called the meeting to order at 4:30 p.m. in Upper 
Jewell Lounge at KCKCC-Main Campus and in the KCKCC Zoom meeting platform on Tuesday, 
May 16, 2023. 

 
2. Roll Call: Trustees present were Chairwoman Evelyn Criswell, Vice Chair Brad Isnard, Mr. 

Don Ash, Ms. Rosalyn Brown, Ms. Pat Brune, Dr. Ray Daniels and Ms. Linda Hoskins Sutton. 
 

They were joined by Dr. Greg Mosier, President, Mr. Greg Goheen, College Attorney, Mr. 
Jerry Pope, Vice President of Academic Affairs and Dr. Scott Balog, Executive Vice President. 

 
3. Informational: Chair Criswell invited Mr. Greg Goheen, College Attorney, to present a 

General Overview of the Nonrenewal Process. Mr. Goheen shared a brief overview of the 
nonrenewal process for faculty at the College. If an individual is going to be nonrenewed for 
employment, a notice of intent to nonrenew must be received by the faculty member by 
the third Friday in May. The faculty member then has a time period under the contract and 
state law to request a hearing. If a hearing is not requested, final action to nonrenew the 
contract of employment is taken at the following Board meeting. If the faculty member 
elects to effectuate and follow that hearing process, the hearing would need to be 
concluded before the Board would take final action. Depending upon the faculty member’s 
tenure with the college, there are different rights in terms of what that notice process is. 
Mr. Goheen asked for questions from the Board. Hearing none, Chair Criswell thanked Mr. 
Goheen.  

 
4. Executive Session(s): Chair Criswell announced there are four (4) executive sessions. Chair 

Criswell called for a motion to enter the first executive session to discuss personnel matters 
of nonelected personnel with possible action to follow in open session at the 5:00 p.m. 



Page 2 of 3 
 

meeting for a 5-minute duration. All action would take place in Upper Jewell Lounge and in 
the virtual meeting room. Vice Chair Isnard made the motion. Trustee Brown seconded the 
motion. The Motion Carried. 

 
The Board was allowed time to travel to the executive session meeting room at 4:33 p.m. 
 
The Board entered the first executive session in Room 3397 and in the virtual meeting room 
at 4:38 p.m. The Board ended the first executive session at 4:43 p.m. 
 
Returning to the open session, Chair Criswell called for a motion to enter a second executive 
session to discuss personnel matters of nonelected personnel with possible action to follow 
in open session at the 5:00 p.m. meeting for a 10-minute duration. All action would take 
place in Upper Jewell Lounge and in the virtual meeting room. Trustee Ash made the 
motion. Trustee Daniels seconded the motion. The Motion Carried. 

 
The second executive session began at 4:45 p.m. The Board ended the second executive 
session at 4:55 p.m. 
 
Returning to the open session, Chair Criswell called for a motion to enter a third executive 
session to discuss personnel matters of nonelected personnel with possible action to follow 
in open session at the 5:00 p.m. meeting for a 5-minute duration. All action would take 
place in Upper Jewell Lounge and in the virtual meeting room. Trustee Brown made the 
motion. Trustee Brune seconded the motion. The Motion Carried. 
 
The third executive session began at 4:56 p.m. The Board ended the third executive session 
at 5:01 p.m. 
 
Returning to the open session, Chair Criswell called for a motion to enter a fourth executive 
session to discuss personnel matters of nonelected personnel with possible action to follow 
in open session for a 3-minute duration. All action would take place in Upper Jewell Lounge 
and in the virtual meeting room. Trustee Ash made the motion. Trustee Brown seconded 
the motion. The Motion Carried. 
 
The fourth executive session began at 5:01 p.m. The Board ended the fourth executive 
session at 5:04 p.m. 
 
The Board was allowed time to travel to Upper Jewell Lounge. 
 
At 5:10 p.m., Chair Criswell returned the meeting to open session. Dr. Mosier announced 
the return from the special meeting and executive sessions and asked for a motion to accept 
the mid-year resignation of Ms. Amber Crum, to release her from her contract and to waive 
any mid-year financial penalty for ending her contract prior to the end date with her 212 
appointment. Vice Chair Isnard made the motion. Trustee Brune seconded the motion. 
The Motion Carried. 



Page 3 of 3 
 

 
Chair Criswell noted that action for executive sessions 1, 2 and 3 will take place in the 
new business section of the regular meeting. 
 

5. Adjournment: Chair Criswell called for a motion to adjourn the meeting. Trustee Brown 
made the motion. Trustee Ash seconded the motion. The Motion Carried. 
 

The meeting adjourned at 5:10 p.m. 
 
 
  
ATTEST: _____________________________________ 

Chairperson, Ms. Evelyn Criswell 
   

_____________________________________ 
Secretary, Dr. Greg Mosier 

 



Updated 06/05/2023 Page 1 of 1 

Recommendations for Payment 

CONSENT AGENDA – Item B 
June 20, 2023 

1) $76,270.00 to Design Mechanical for Learning Commons, Flint Bldg., and Math Air Dampers.
Requested by Shelley Kneuvean – Funding Source – Capital Outlay:  HVAC.

2) $45,481.27 to American Digital Security LLC for fieldhouse access card installation.  Requested
by Shelley Kneuvean.  Funding Source – Campus Police:  Card Access

3) $38,109.69 to Electronics Supply Co., Inc.  for replacement switches for aging equipment in
network closets.  Requested by Peter Gabriel.  Funding Source – Information Services:
Computer Equipment

4) $131,271.70 to Lenovo Inc. for replacement computers.  Requested by Peter Gabriel.  Funding
Source – Information Services:  Computer Equipment.

5) 51,400.00 to Treanor Architects for Facilities Master Plan, Professional Services April 2023.
Requested by Shelley Kneuvean.  Funding Source – Finance & Administration:  Facilities.

6) $35,940.00 to Environmental Works Inc. for phase II, GPR Survey and drilling for Downtown
location. $6,855 will be reimbursed by Swope Health and CommunityAmerica Credit Union as
our partners sharing in the cost.  Requested by Shelley Kneuvean.  Funding Source – Downtown
Location:  Construction in Progress.

7) $44,505.00 to Cox Air Systems Inc. for delivery and fabrication for the sculpture Perseverance.
Requested by Shelley Kneuvean.  Funding Source – Capital Outlay:  Ambient Learning Spaces.

8) $220,000 to Clarus for the digital advertising strategy working with the Marketing Department
for FY23.  Work and billing will not start until July 1.  Funding Source – Marketing:  Contractual
Services.

9) $285,687.72 to Citywide Facility Solutions for custodial services at the Technical Education
Center 1, 2, 3, and Fire Science.

10) $93,000 to RE Leasing for bus lease.   Requested by Shelley Kneuvean.  Funding Source – Finance
Operating Account Bus Lease.

May bills totaling $1,967,112.78 includes April VISA bills of $266,148.04.



 
 

Items for Ratification 
 

CONSENT AGENDA – Item C 
June 20, 2023 
 
 

1. $11,361.50 to KJCCC for umpires for Spring 2023 season.  Requested by Chris Meiers.  Funding Source – 
Baseball:  Home Game Expense. 

2. $15,000.00 to Unified School District 500 for Sack lunches for KOC.  Requested Jerry Pope.  Funding 
Source – Kids on Campus:  Food Expense. 

3. $22,440.00 to American Digital Security LLC for iClass ID cards.  Requested by Shelley Kneuvean.  Funding 
Source – Campus Police:  Safety Expense. 

4. $22,000.00 to Loan Science Sc LLC for Borrowers Connect Comprehensive Service for Financial Aid.  
Requested by Chris Meiers.  Funding Source – Financial Aid:  Contractual Expense 

5. $16,000.00 to Em’s Spotlight for dance instructions for Kids on Campus.  Request by Jerry pope. Funding 
Source – Kids on Campus:  Contractual Expense 

6. $20,895.00 to Digital Architecture LLC for the annual renewal of Acalog subscription.  Requested by Peter 
Gabriel.  Funding Source – Information Services:  Software Expense. 

7. $22,732.60 to P1 Service LLC for asset tagging for Facility Services in the month of April.  Requested by 
Shelley Kneuvean.  Funding source – Maintenance: Supplies and Expense. 

8. $14,037.22 to P1 Service LLC for electrical work in the Board room remodeling project in the month of 
May.  Requested by Shelley Kneuvean.  Funding Source – Executive Board Room Remodel/Strategic 
Initiatives. 

9. $18,850.00 to Porter Backstop to replace basketball goal and backstop.  Requested by Shelley Kneuvean.  
Funding Source – Strategic Initiatives. 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 Updated 06/05/2023                                                                     Page 1 of 1 



 
 

HUMAN RESOURCES - PERSONNEL ITEMS 
 

CONSENT AGENDA – Item D 
June 20, 2023 

 
SEPARATION INFORMATION 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS / APPROVALS 

ACTION NAME JOB TITLE DEPT DIV DATE SALARY 
Master 

Contract Ball, Kristen Associate 
Professor Accounting Academic Affairs 06/01/2023 $79,217.59 

Master 
Contract Miles, Todd Assistant 

Professor Fire Science Academic Affairs 05/01/2023 $83,429.87 

New Hire Addison, 
Tiffany 

Part-Time 
Program 
Assistant 

Upward Bound 
Academy 

Student Affairs 
and Enrollment 
Management 

06/09/2023 $15.00 per 
hour 

New Hire Claybaugh, 
Jodi 

Part-Time Lab 
Assistant 

Emergency 
Medical 

Education 
Academic Affairs 06/06/2023 $19.45 per 

hour 

New Hire Crockett, 
Jazmine 

Part-Time 
Program 
Assistant 

Upward Bound 
Academy 

Student Affairs 
and Enrollment 
Management 

06/07/2023 $15.00 per 
hour 

New Hire Davenport, 
Valentina Police Officer College Police Financial & 

Facility Services 06/08/2023 $51,907 
annually 

New Hire Franklin, 
Steven 

Retention and 
Career Coach 

Student Success 
Center 

Student Affairs 
and Enrollment 
Management 

05/22/2023 $61,884.59 
annually 

ACTION NAME JOB TITLE DEPT DIVISION EFF. DATE 

Resignation Berry, Scott Maintenance 
Specialist I Facility Services Financial & Facility 

Services 06/23/2023 

Resignation Campbell, Katelyn Adjunct Spanish Academic Affairs 06/30/2023 

Resignation Gossett, Brandon Assistant Coach Athletics 
Student Affairs and 

Enrollment 
Management 

06/18/2023 

Resignation Wishall, Mary Adjunct Health Professions Academic Affairs 05/19/2023 

Resignation Zerr, Thomas Instructor Adult and Continuing 
Education Academic Affairs 05/23/2023 

Retirement Ice, Tamela Professor Philosophy Academic Affairs 05/31/2023 



New Hire Green, 
Madison 

Student Success 
Advisor 

Student Success 
Center 

Student Affairs 
and Enrollment 
Management 

06/01/2023 $61,884.59 
annually 

New Hire Harrell, Faith Instructor Reading Academic Affairs 08/07/2023 $64,986.88 
annually 

New Hire Hossain, 
Sehtab Adjunct Electrical 

Technology Academic Affairs 07/10/2023 $970.32 per 
credit hour 

New Hire Klise, 
Kimberly 

Administrative 
Assistant to the 

Dean 

Arts, 
Communications 

& Humanities 
Academic Affairs 06/08/2023 $48,000 

annually 

New Hire Lamb, Tyler 
Administrative 
Assistant to the 

Dean 

Health 
Professions Academic Affairs 05/24/2023 $45,470 

annually 

New Hire Mendoza, 
Valerie 

Retention and 
Career Coach 

Student Success 
Center 

Student Affairs 
and Enrollment 
Management 

06/01/2023 $75,697.86 
annually 

New Hire Miller, Teyana 
Part-Time 
Summer 
Instructor 

Upward Bound 
Academy 

Student Affairs 
and Enrollment 
Management 

06/07/2023 $20.00 per 
hour 

New Hire Nordengren, 
Carolyn Adjunct 

Arts, 
Communications 

& Humanities 
Academic Affairs 08/07/2023 $970.32 per 

credit hour 

New Hire Roepke, Faith Administrative 
Assistant Registrar’s Office 

Student Affairs 
and Enrollment 
Management 

06/08/2023 $38,000 
annually 

New Hire Rollins, 
Kimberly 

Part-Time 
Program 
Assistant 

Upward Bound 
Academy 

Student Affairs 
and Enrollment 
Management 

06/09/2023 $20.00 per 
hour 

Promotion  Belt, Tina Instructor Mortuary Science Academic Affairs 08/01/2023 $61,666.38 
annually* 

Promotion Fordlee, Brian Administrative 
Assistant 

Learning & 
Library Services Academic Affairs 06/05/2023 $39,000 

annually 

Promotion Johnson, 
Felicia 

Assistant 
Director 

Student Financial 
Aid 

Student Affairs 
and Enrollment 
Management 

05/16/2023 $69,321 
annually 

Rehire Bradley-
Lopez, Gary 

Part-Time 
Instructor  

Upward Bound 
Academy 

Student Affairs 
and Enrollment 
Management 

05/24/2023 $20.00 per 
hour 

Rehire Trowbridge, 
Douglas 

Part-Time Lab 
Assistant 

Emergency 
Medical 

Education 
Academic Affairs 06/08/2023 $25.21 per 

hour 

Transfer Kamler, Jenell 
Part-Time 
Temporary 
Specialist II 

International 
Student Services 

Student Affairs 
and Enrollment 
Management 

05/22/2023 $24.11 per 
hour 

 
* The salary is Class 6, Step 6. 

 
 
Action Definitions 

• New Hire- an individual who enters their first employment relationship with the College. 
• Rehire – an individual that reenters into an employment relationship with the College. 



• Transfer - a staff transfer to another position that does not result in an increase to a higher job grade. A faculty transfer is 
from the 182 to 212 designation and vice versa. 

• Promotion- is the advancement of a staff’s grade or increase to their salary. 
• Retirement- a formal way an employee voluntarily ends their employment.as indicated on their separation notice. 
• Reassignment- a change to an employee’s current position. It may result in movement within the same organizational unit 

or another unit, a change in duties, work location, days of work, salary, or hours of work. 
• Resignation- a formal way an employee voluntarily ends their employment. 
• Separation- a formal way an employee is involuntarily ending their employment.  
• Interim - An employee filling a vacant position on a temporary basis until a competitive search process is completed. 
• Additional Position – an additional position that is given to someone that is actively employed at the college. 
• Non-Renew – a Professional Employee’s contract will not be renewed at the end of their term. 
• Master Contract - Completion of a degree resulting in a change to the faculty member’s class on the contract. 
• Back Pay – the difference between what the College paid an employee and the actual amount owed to the employee. 

 



June 2023 Board of Trustees Report 
Vice President of Academic Affairs 

1 
 
 

June 2023 Academic Affairs Summary 

• In late April and early May, the Office of Assessment conducted six drop-in sessions for 
coordinators and faculty leads at the Technical Education Center and on Main Campus. 
Nineteen coordinators/leads took advantage of these services. 

• The Kansas City Kansas Community College Art Gallery’s newest exhibition is “This 
Skin I’m In,” a collection of images and narratives by artists in and engaged with the 
LGBTQIA+ community. 

• Art Coordinator Shai Perry and Art Instructor Cindy Leung had the honor of installing 
the traveling exhibition “Holler If You See Me: Black Appalachia” in Wichita, KS. The 
exhibit is on display now through September 30th. 

• A KCKCC mural was a stop on a special tour guided by Terry Woodbury for his guest 
from Denver, CO, on May 13th. Also present for the special tour were Mural 
collaborators Chester Owens, Kirsten Zane, and Holly Zane.  

• Double sculpture unveiling of newest Rita Blitt Sculptures on May 25. The first sculpture 
is “Resilience.” Standing 14 feet tall, the sculpture is burnt orange and was installed 
outside the Learning Commons. The second sculpture is “Perseverance.” Also 14 feet, 
the sculpture features the college’s trademark blue and is located by the pond outside the 
Jewell Building. Both sculptures were designed from Blitt’s original drawings created in 
1993 and are organic shapes that peer toward the sky. 

• KCKCC celebrated the graduation of 21 Welding Technology graduates at the Lansing 
Correctional Facility (LCF) on May 25. 

• KCKCC celebrated its seventh Industrial Maintenance Technician (IMT) graduation on 
May 17. Nine students graduated from the IMT training program. The Kansas 
Department of Commerce and manufacturing companies sponsor this training. 

• KCKCC Community Education’s Driver’s Education Program partnered with Kansas 
City Kansas Public Schools to offer Driver’s Education at Washington High School as a 
summer school class from June 5 through June 28 for 20 students.  

• The local nonprofit, The Learning Club, is sponsoring 113 children to attend Kids on 
Campus this summer for all five weeks of programming. 

• Kids on Campus is now a Qualified Education Service Provider with the Kansas 
Education Enrichment Program (KEEP). KEEP Kansas will award $1000 to qualifying 
family members to pay for the Kids on Campus summer enrollment fees.  

• In May, both nursing programs were recognized for Excellence in Nursing Education for 
achieving NCLEX scores that were above the national average (RN 82.86%, Nation 
79.9%; PN 93.55%, Nation 79.9%).  

• Dr. Tiffany Bohm, Dean of Health Professions, completed her Doctor of Education in 
Leadership degree with an emphasis in Innovative Leadership in Higher Education from 
the University of Saint Mary. Her dissertation, Prepared for success? Perceptions of Vice 
Presidents of Academic Affairs regarding development of academic deans in a 
community college, examined current practices and opportunities for improvement related 
to preparing aspiring and in-tenure academic deans for success in their role.  



June 2023 Board of Trustees Report 
Vice President of Academic Affairs 

2 
 
 

Academic Support and Assessment – Dean Cecelia Brewer 
 
Office of Assessment: Dr. Cynthia Goudeau, Director 
  
In late April and early May, the Office of Assessment conducted six drop-in sessions for 
coordinators and faculty leads at the Technical Education Center and on Main Campus. These 
sessions focused on the documentation in Taskstream that is submitted at the end of each year 
and provided a dedicated space for work on the assessment findings and status reports of the 
assessment cycle. Faculty and staff had the opportunity to have the Assessment Team review 
their submissions, ask questions, and get one on one attention for their programs. Nineteen 
coordinators/leads took advantage of these services. The Office of Assessment hopes that spaces 
like these will increase the success of program-level outcomes.  

Center of Teaching Excellence: Tom Grady, Director 
 
The Center for Teaching Excellence collaborated with Media Services and Strategic Initiatives 
and Outreach to record interviews of the Fall 2023 TEACH Award Recipients. The recorded 
interviews can be found on the Center for Teaching Excellence webpage. The goal is to highlight 
examples of instructional excellence and further recognize the TEACH Award recipients. Plans 
include adding the names of previous recipients of the Henry Louis and TEACH Awards to the 
webpage and adding the recorded interviews. Thank you, Matthew Fowler, Web Administrator, 
and Randy Royer, Media Services Director, for helping with this project. 
 
 
Arts, Communication and Humanities – Dean Dr. Donna Bohn 

Music: 

Dr. Justin Binek, Associate Professor of Music, and Dr. Jeremy Fox (Southwestern Community 
College, Creston IA) announced this year's dates for their annual Jazz Harmony Retreat. The 
Jazz Harmony Retreat provides intensive instruction in jazz piano and jazz arranging, as well as 
professional development/continuing education credit, for choral educators who did not receive 
that training in their music education studies. This year's retreat will encompass 45 hours of 
online instruction taking place July 2-9. Dr. Binek and Dr. Fox shifted the retreat online during 
the pandemic and have kept it online since as it allows more educators to take part. 

Professor John Stafford will be attending the Kansas Choral Directors Association Summer 
Conference in Topeka, KS, July 11-15. 

Professor John Stafford will be the guest conductor of the Missouri All-State Vocal Jazz 
Ensemble at the Missouri Choral Directors Association Summer Conference in Springfield, MO, 
July 17-22. The ensemble will premiere Dr. Justin Binek’s (Associate Professor of Music) 
arrangement of Capillary, written for this event. 

 



June 2023 Board of Trustees Report 
Vice President of Academic Affairs 

3 
 
 

 
Humanities: 

Professor of Media, Bryan Whitehead, presented Goats, Miracles Cures, and Mass Media: The 
John R. Brinkley Story at Wyandotte County Library on May 18 as part of the KCKCC 
Humanities Talk series funded by a Humanities Kansas grant. Professor Whitehead explored 
how this unique history intersects with the development of mass media and the lessons it offers 
for today.  

English Professors Tasha Haas and Gregg Ventello were readers as part of the Riverfront 
Reading Series on Friday, May 12, at The Writers Place in KCMO.  

 

From Shai Perry (Art Gallery) 

Exhibit Updates: 

• New Exhibit Opening Reception June 6 
from 4:30 to 7:00 pm. We will also be 
hosting our partner group PRISM: A 
Women & Non-binary Arts Community for 
their June social. As a celebration of Pride 
Month, the Kansas City Kansas 
Community College Art Gallery’s newest 
exhibition is “This Skin I’m In,” a 
collection of images and narratives by 
artists in and engaged with the LGBTQIA+ 
community. With this series of visual 
autobiographies, photographers were 
invited to submit work that expressed their own personal experiences of queerness using 
photography and narrative as a vehicle for self-expression. 
 

• Third Friday Art Walk  
See the KCKCC Art Department at our new Art Walk location. 
The project is called "The Satellite Gallery" and is located at 
707 N 6th St KCK. The Student Art Club will be selling works 
to fundraise for scholarships and conferences. Please come out 
and support us.  

 



June 2023 Board of Trustees Report 
Vice President of Academic Affairs 

4 
 
 

• Exhibition Installation at The Kansas African American 
Museum 
Art Coordinator Shai Perry and Art Instructor Cindy Leung 
had the honor of installing the traveling exhibition “Holler If 
You See Me: Black Appalachia” in Wichita, KS. The exhibit 
is on display now through September 30th. Ms. Perry was the 
guest speaker for the TKAAM Lunch and Learn on June 7.  

 

Highlights:  

• Art Gallery Coordinator joined the Art Club on the Chicago 
trip.  

 

 

• Newman Family special tour  
The Art Gallery welcomed the family of artist John Newman on May 27. Newman has 
been in the KCKCC Art Collection since 2009. The Art Committee commissioned him to 
construct a mural entitled “Underground Railroad.” The mural depicts the journey for 
freedom across the Missouri River to Kaw Point and the town of Quindaro. Mr. Newman 
passed away in March 2022. His last exhibition was held at KCKCC Art Gallery “From 
Tanner to Knight: An African American Art Expose.” His daughter Jamila Newman 
strives to keep his memory alive by supporting the Art Gallery.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Historical Mural Tour 
Our mural was a stop on a special tour guided by Terry Woodbury for his guest from 
Denver, CO, on May 13th. Also present for the special tour were Mural collaborators 
Chester Owens, Kirsten Zane, and Holly Zane.  

 

 

 

 

 



June 2023 Board of Trustees Report 
Vice President of Academic Affairs 

5 
 
 

• Elementary Students enjoying the Student Honor Show  
 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ambient Space:  

• Double sculpture unveiling of newest Rita Blitt Sculptures on 
May 25  
The first sculpture is “Resilience.” Standing 14 feet tall, the 
sculpture is burnt orange and was installed outside the Learning 
Commons. The second sculpture is “Perseverance.” Also 14 
feet, the sculpture features the college’s trademark blue and is 
located by the pond outside the Jewell Building. Both 
sculptures were designed from Blitt’s original drawings created 
in 1993 and are organic shapes that peer toward the sky. 

  
Career and Technical Education – Interim Dean- Ashley Irvin  

The KCKCC Electrical Technology instructors from the Technical Education Center (TEC) and 
Pioneer Career Center (PCC) attended the Arc Flash Electrical Safety NFPA 70E® course in 
Chicago May 15-16 that was held by TPC Training. The course is structured to help fulfill 
requirements according to the NFPA 70E® “Standard for Electrical Safety in the Workplace,” in 
which instructors became certified in Arc Flash, a critical electrical safety issue. The instructors 
will be qualified to provide this type of safety training to their students. 



June 2023 Board of Trustees Report 
Vice President of Academic Affairs 

6 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Electrical Technology Instructors L-R: Omar Aldelemi (PCC), James Carmack (TEC),  
TPC Representative, and Ammar Ali (TEC) 

KCKCC celebrated the graduation of 21 Welding Technology graduates at the Lansing 
Correctional Facility (LCF). The graduation was held on May 25 at LCF and graduation speaker 
Na’im Al-Amin, Founder of SWAGG, shared his journey from being housed at LCF to creating 
his nonprofit that provides resources and support services to inmates once released. Graduates 
took the opportunity to chat with guests and enjoyed a light reception following the graduation 
ceremony. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



June 2023 Board of Trustees Report 
Vice President of Academic Affairs 

7 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

KCKCC celebrated its seventh Industrial Maintenance Technician (IMT) graduation on May 17. 
Nine students graduated from the IMT training program. The Kansas Department of Commerce 
and the college’s manufacturing sponsors sponsor this training. Wyandotte Economic 
Development Council and Kansas Manufacturing Solutions were vital in marketing the seventh 
IMT cohort. The graduates, family, friends, and immediate supervisors celebrated this 
remarkable achievement. The IMT program creates an internal talent pipeline for employers. 
Companies that sponsored a trainee for the seventh cohort included the following: 

 
Amsted Rail 
MacWater Technologies 
Plastikon Healthcare (Lawrence, KS) 
Premium Custom Foods 
Rehrig Pacific Company 
Stryten Energy 

 
Attending the graduation were Dr. Greg Mosier, KCKCC President; Dr. Scott Balog, Executive 
Vice President; Jerry Pope, Vice President of Academic Affairs; Ashley Irvin, Interim Dean of 
Career and Technical Education; Tyson Winningham, Kansas Department of Commerce 
Workforce Aid Director; and Monica Brede, Wyandotte Economic Development Council Senior 
Director of Business Retention and Workforce Solutions. Dr. Mosier, Dr. Balog, and Mr. Pope 
spoke words of encouragement on how essential the training is for the students, companies, and 
community success in competing globally. KCKCC will be offering its eighth IMT cohort in the 
fall.  



June 2023 Board of Trustees Report 
Vice President of Academic Affairs 

8 
 
 

 



June 2023 Board of Trustees Report 
Vice President of Academic Affairs 

9 
 
 

  
 

Students at the PCC were busy with different projects in May. Construction Technology students 
spent part of May learning how to build staircases. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

HVAC students learned how to thoroughly clean AC condenser coils. This helps the unit run 
more efficiently. 



June 2023 Board of Trustees Report 
Vice President of Academic Affairs 

10 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Culinary Arts students prepared hamburgers creating their own seasonings, sauces, buns, and 
French fries. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



June 2023 Board of Trustees Report 
Vice President of Academic Affairs 

11 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

High school students in the morning HVAC class at TEC worked on their sheet metal projects in 
May. Students learned how to draw, layout, and fabricate sheet metal as part of their HVAC 
coursework. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

KCKCC Community Education’s Driver’s Education Program partnered with Kansas City 
Kansas Public Schools to offer Driver’s Education at Washington High School as a summer 
school class from June 5 through June 28 for 20 students.  

The local nonprofit, The Learning Club, is sponsoring 113 children to attend Kids on Campus 
this summer for all five weeks of programming. The Learning Club’s High School Internship 
Program is also providing a paid summer internship program for seven future educators to 
participate in Kids on Campus as helpers for the younger camp groups to gain work experience 
and support the KOC Counselors.  



June 2023 Board of Trustees Report 
Vice President of Academic Affairs 

12 
 
 

Kids on Campus is now a Qualified Education Service Provider with the Kansas Education 
Enrichment Program (KEEP). KEEP Kansas will award $1000 to qualifying family members to 
pay for the Kids on Campus summer enrollment fees.  

Catholic Charities is sponsoring 29 refugee children to participate in Kids on Campus this 
summer.  

Health Professions – Dean Dr. Tiffany Bohm 

PTA  
Two PTA students travelled to Wichita to volunteer at the State Special Olympics FUNFitness 
event. The 13 volunteers screened 89 athletes while promoting the importance of physical 
therapy. The inaugural “Healthy Athlete” event was run by two KCKCC PTA graduates, Dr. 
Brandy Palacios and Lornal Jarret. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

KCKCC PTA students Paul Lyan and Alan 
Perez 

Brandy, Paul, Alan, and Lorna 



June 2023 Board of Trustees Report 
Vice President of Academic Affairs 

13 
 
 

Nursing 
In May, both programs were recognized for Excellence in Nursing Education for achieving 
NCLEX scores that were above the national average (RN 82.86%, Nation 79.9%; PN 93.55%, 
Nation 79.9%).  
 
The programs pinned 21 PN graduates and 40 RN graduates on May 17. We also recognized our 
first program Superstars. Nominations were collected all semester from faculty, staff, and 
students. Superstars selected by the committee were: 

 
RN Student: Geoffrey Nyairo 
PN Student: Celia Burnett 
RN Faculty: Hallie Stephen-Castro 
PN Faculty: Dr. Matthias Ngewa 
 

In addition to hosting an annual open house, HP advisor Carrie Boorem, is developing 
informational sessions to offer twice per year to assist potential students. For fall 2023 there are 
20 PN, 35 RN generic, and 11 RN articulation new students. 
 
General 
Dr. Tiffany Bohm, Dean of Health Professions, completed her Doctor of Education in 
Leadership degree with an emphasis in Innovative Leadership in Higher Education from the 
University of Saint Mary. Her dissertation, Prepared for success? Perceptions of Vice Presidents 
of Academic Affairs regarding development of academic deans in a community college, 
examined current practices and opportunities for improvement related to preparing aspiring and 
in-tenure academic deans for success in their role. 
 

Mathematics, Science, Business and Technology – Dean Dr. Ed Kremer  

Dr. Ross Stites met with advisory board members for the Electronics Engineering Technology at 
the HTMA (Healthcare Technology Management Association) local meeting. They discussed 
partnering for electronic medical equipment repair. 

Dr. Stites, Dr. Stacy Tucker, Mr. Tom Grady, and Dr. Kremer are meeting with Merchant 
McIntyre on submission of an NSF IUSE grant for STEM Undergraduate Research.  

Dr. Ishfaq Ahmed is following up with the Bio-manufacturing advisory board to create a 
Certificate B and an articulation guide for students going through BMFR Cert A to the AS in 
Biology and finishing at KUE with a BAS in Biotechnology. 

Dr. Mosier, Dr. Balog, and Dr. Kremer toured Custom Truck in Kansas City, MO, with Teddy 
Dixon their Director of Training and Development. A second meeting is being set for Teddy to 
tour the KCKCC campus and see how we might partner for graduates from several technical 
programs at the college. 



June 2023 Board of Trustees Report 
Vice President of Academic Affairs 

14 
 
 

The K-12 Initiative (Saturday Academy) is planning for the summer program to be held daily at 
KUMC and on Fridays at KCKCC. The program is open to 9-12 graders from KCKPS. 
Applications closed June 1st and students are being notified of their selection now. 

Social and Behavioral Sciences & Public Services – Dean Cleon Wiggins 

 On May 23, Dean Wiggins met with representatives from the University of Kansas Education 
program for a preliminary discussion about the possibility of a partnership between the KCKCC 
education program and the K.U. education program, working together on a Teacher Education 
Competitive Grant Program. The goal of the grant (and the program) is to recruit, educate and 
train more teachers for Kansas. More information will follow as future meetings take place.  

Professor Michael James, coordinator of the addiction counseling program, has been reappointed 
by the chair of the Kansas Behavioral Sciences Regulatory Board to serve another two-year term 
on the Addiction Counseling Advisory Committee.  
 

The Early Childhood Education and Development program was recognized by the recent (May 
2023) KBOR visit as a program that stood out due to its “. . . specific descriptions of supports for 
students in special populations.” 



 
 

 June 2023 Student Affairs and Enrollment Management (SAEM) Board of Trustees Report 
Submited by Chris Meiers, Ph.D. 

Vice President for Student Affairs and Enrollment Management 
 

Division-Wide Selected Ac�vi�es, Programs, and Updates   

• Strategic Enrollment Management Plan Updates 
o Summer 2023 enrollment is up 4.38% in headcount and 3.59% in student credit hours 

a�er the first week of class compared to Summer 2022.  
o The Fall 2023 enrollment is con�nuing to improve with only twenty-six fewer students 

enrolled now compared to Fall 2022. SAEM is working with Academic Affairs to focus 
efforts on con�nuing student enrolment at TEC specifically related to financial 
counseling and aid op�ons. 

o The Office of Admissions has processed 6.2% more applica�ons for the Summer 2023 
semester compared to Summer 2022. For Fall 2022, 498 more applica�ons (21.0% 
increase) have been processed in 2023 compared to the same �me in 2022. 

o The sa�sfactory academic aid process has been completed for the spring 2023 semester. 
KCKCC had twenty-nine fewer students than spring 2022 be placed on a financial aid 
warning status or no longer be eligible for federal financial aid. Overall, 75.0% of all 
KCKCC students achieved sa�sfactory academic progress (74.7% in Spring 2022). 

o Through collabora�on with the academic deans and Ins�tu�onal Effec�veness, 96.5% 
(386 missing grades out of 10,961) of all non-high school located grades were 
submited by faculty before the deadline.  

• Division-Wide Strategic Plan Updates 
o The solicita�on process for a campus engagement pla�orm vendor has started. A 

pla�orm will provide a centralized place for students to learn how to get involved in co-
curricular ac�vi�es and resources for student clubs and departments across the College 
to facilitate more out of the classroom ac�vi�es. 

o In collabora�on with Campus Facili�es, projects to improve athle�cs facili�es are 
underway with the design phase of the expanded athle�cs training facility. The 
expanded training facility will free up space in the basement of the fieldhouse so that 
the volleyball and women’s soccer teams will no longer have to share a locker room 
once completed. 

• Commencement 2023 Ceremonies-a total of 341 students and ninety-seven faculty par�cipated 
in the 2:00 PM ceremony and 140 students and sixty-five faculty members par�cipated in the 
7:00 PM ceremony. The Commencement Commitee will be reviewing op�ons for the 2024 
ceremony over the summer for considera�on to meet the growing number of graduates and 
their guests wan�ng to par�cipate in the ceremonies. 

  



Student Affairs and Enrollment Management Board of Trustees June 2023 Report 
Page | 2   

 

 

Table of Contents 
 

Summer 2023 Enrollment Report ........................................................................................................................ 3 

Fall 2023 Enrollment Report ................................................................................................................................ 4 

Dean of Student Services ..................................................................................................................................... 5 

Admissions and Recruitment ............................................................................................................................... 7 

Athle�cs ............................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Counseling & Advocacy...................................................................................................................................... 10 

Military and Veteran Center .............................................................................................................................. 10 

Registra�on and Records ................................................................................................................................... 11 

Student Ac�vi�es ............................................................................................................................................... 13 

Student Financial Aid ......................................................................................................................................... 13 

Student Housing ................................................................................................................................................ 15 

Student Success and Reten�on ......................................................................................................................... 15 

Upward Bound Academy ................................................................................................................................... 16 

 

  



Student Affairs and Enrollment Management Board of Trustees June 2023 Report 
Page | 3   

 

Summer 2023 Enrollment Report 
 

 



Student Affairs and Enrollment Management Board of Trustees June 2023 Report 
Page | 4   

 

Fall 2023 Enrollment Report 
 

 



Student Affairs and Enrollment Management Board of Trustees June 2023 Report 
Page | 5   

 

Dean of Student Services   
Submited by Dr. Shawn Derrit, Dean of Student Services   
 
Selected Ac�vi�es, Programs, and Updates   
• Met with a student and his family at Chelsea Elementary for a mentoring session. 
• Assisted Upward Bound staff with recruitment at target schools, Schlagle High School. 
• Assisted with Gradua�on �cket distribu�on. 

Upcoming Ac�vi�es and Programs 

• Dr. Derrit will atend the HLC Assessment Academy Team Results Forum in Chicago June 13 – 
15 as a member of the KCKCC Academy Team. The team consists of Cecelia Brewer, Cynthia 
Goudeau, Todd Miles, and Stacy Tucker. The purpose of the conference is to share strategies 
and lessons learned with Academy teams in the earliest stages of developing their projects. 

Student Accessibility and Support Services   
Submited by Department Faculty   
 
Selected Ac�vi�es, Programs, and Updates   
• SASS faculty visited Wyandote High School and met with twenty students with disabili�es 

that applied to atend TEC in Fall 2023. The presenta�on focused on what accommoda�ons 
and disability services look like at the college level. 

• SASS faculty presented to the Admissions Office about the department, services available, 
disability e�quete, and what SASS needs to know from Admissions. 

• On May 3, SASS faculty met with a representa�ve from James Emmet and Company to discuss 
an outreach to our students regarding employment opportuni�es. JEC hopes to reach students 
with disabili�es, veterans, and alumni to help them gain employment. The representa�ve also 
reached out to the Career Center. 
 

Upcoming Ac�vi�es and Programs 

• Accessibility Summer Camp, June 2. SASS faculty will be presen�ng on disability e�quete and 
facilita�ng a student panel during the conference. 

• KSSB Visit, June 8. SASS faculty will meet with students from the Kansas State School for the 
Blind’s Summer Program. They will receive general informa�on about students with disabili�es 
in higher educa�on, specifics about becoming a student at KCKCC, and a tour of main campus. 
They hope to also schedule a tour of TEC the following week. 

• SASS faculty will give a presenta�on to Upward Bound Students on Test taking and test anxiety 
on June 16, 2023. 

• July 18. The Pre-employment Program Director from Voca�onal Rehabilita�on Services plans to 
bring a group of clients to visit KCKCC. The focus of the mee�ng is to inform the clients of the 
possibility of atending college or TEC to improve their employment possibili�es. 

 
 

 



Student Affairs and Enrollment Management Board of Trustees June 2023 Report 
Page | 6   

 

 

Student Health Services   
Submited by Angie Williams, RN 

Selected Ac�vi�es, Programs, and Updates   
• The Student Health Center had seven office visits in May. The visits included blood pressure 

checks, first aid administra�on, over-the-counter medica�on requests, and one emergency 
visit.  

• The Student Health Center provided 166 tuberculin (TB) screening services, including 
administering injec�ons, reading results, and obtaining TB ques�onnaires.  

• The Student Health Center received one report of a posi�ve COVDI-19 test result from a  
student in May.  

• The Student Health Center par�cipated in the summer semester new nursing student 
orienta�on and administrated nine TB tests.  

• The Student Health Center provided first aid sta�ons at gradua�on and treated three minor 
issues.  

 
Upcoming Ac�vi�es and Programs 

• Kids On Campus (KOC) starts on June 19 and the Student Health Center will provide first aid 
services and TB screenings for new staff. 

 
Student Basic Needs Center   
Submited by Fyn Morrigan, Student Basic Needs Coordinator    
  
Selected Ac�vi�es, Programs, and Updates    
• The Basic Needs Center met with staff at the Wyandote County Extension Kansas State 

University Office to learn about services and programs, and to explore a poten�al partnership to 
bring a Kitchen Re-Store service to the College. More informa�on about the Re-Store project 
located in Mission, KS can be found at htps://www.johnson.k-state.edu/health-food-
safety/kitchen-restore-project.html. 

• Staff atended a community partner webinar: Food + Workforce Development: Crea�ng 
Pathways Out of Food Insecurity. This webinar focused on addressing food insecurity and the 
linkage between food and financial insecurity. Presenters included: KC Scholars/Great Jobs KC, 
Literacy KC, and Pawsperity (formerly called The Grooming Project).  

• The Basic Needs Center is working in partnership with KC Healthy kids to bring herbs and 
produce to Blues Kitchen Cupboard. 

• Blues Kitchen Cupboard served fi�y households in May, providing food and personal hygiene 
items to 106 adults, seventeen children and five persons that were sixty-five or older. 
  

Upcoming Ac�vi�es and Programs  
 
• In July, staff and leadership will be hos�ng a follow up mee�ng and tour of our Basic Needs 

Center on our main campus with Wyandote County Extension Kansas State University. Staff 

https://www.johnson.k-state.edu/health-food-safety/kitchen-restore-project.html
https://www.johnson.k-state.edu/health-food-safety/kitchen-restore-project.html


Student Affairs and Enrollment Management Board of Trustees June 2023 Report 
Page | 7   

 

and will also be atending a tour of the Johnson County Kitchen Re-store in Mission, KS at 
the end of July. 

Admissions and Recruitment  
Submited by Teressa Hill, Director of Admissions and Recruitment   
 
Selected Ac�vi�es, Programs, and Updates   

• On Thursday May 18th the Office of Admissions and Recruitment 
supported the ins�tu�on and scholars during gradua�on. 

• On Thursday May 25th the Office of Admissions and Recruitment 
atended the Hispanic Development Fund scholar celebra�on at 
the University of Missouri-Kansas City. 

 
Upcoming Ac�vi�es and Programs 

• June 07: Hos�ng Topeka High School for an admissions presenta�on and campus tour. 
• June 14: Par�cipa�ng in the Nebraska Furniture Mart LGBQIA+ Community Event. 
• June 14: Hos�ng the Boys and Girls club on-campus for an admissions and campus tour.  
• June 25: The Office of Admissions and Recruitment will be par�cipa�ng in the Organiza�on 

for Communica�on Preserva�on Group summer enrichment camp by providing college 
preparatory and admissions presenta�ons. 

 

 



Student Affairs and Enrollment Management Board of Trustees June 2023 Report 
Page | 8   

 

 

Athle�cs  
Submited by Greg McVey, Director of Athle�cs 

Selected Ac�vi�es, Programs, and Updates   

• The KCKCC Athle�c Department announced 
the academic success of the eight athle�c 
teams. Overall, the eight squads earned a 
3.11 GPA for the 2022-23 academic year. 
Four of the athle�c teams reached a 3.0 
mark overall, led by so�ball (3.72), volleyball 
(3.41), baseball (3.21) and men's soccer (3.15). Addi�onally, 102 Blue Devil Student-Athletes 
achieved a 3.0-grade point average or beter during the 2022-2023 Academic Year, out of 156 
total student-athletes. And 10 Blue Devil Student-Athletes achieved a perfect 4.0 GPA during the 
year. In the fall semester, a total of 105 student-athletes were named to the Dean's List. Of those 
105, 27 made the President's honor roll (4.0 GPA or higher), forty were named to the VP honor 
roll (3.50-3.99 GPA) and thirty-eight others made the honor roll (3.0-3.49 GPA). 

 
• KCKCC so�ball player Ruby Nola was named a 

recipient of a NJCAA DII Gold Glove by the Na�onal 
Fastpitch Coaches Associa�on, (NFCA).  Besides 
spor�ng a .482 ba�ng average at the plate, Nola 
was outstanding in le� field for the Blue Devils. She 
recorded a .953 fielding percentage with fi�y-nine 
putouts and two assists in forty games for the 
squad. Recipients of the Rawlings Gold Glove 

https://bluedevils.kckcc.edu/sports/sball/2022-23/bios/nola_ruby_jahm


Student Affairs and Enrollment Management Board of Trustees June 2023 Report 
Page | 9   

 

Award, presented by the NFCA, were selected by the NFCA's NJCAA Division I and II All-America 
Commitees, following regional vo�ng to iden�fy the finalists at each posi�on.  

• KCKCC baseball player Hector Candelas and KCKCC 
volleyball player Jo-Annie Perez have been named 
College Sports Communicators Academic All-District 
At-Large winners. Candelas earned a 3.8 GPA and led 
the Blue Devils baseball team with a .429 ba�ng 
average and sixty-seven runs scored. He also 
recorded nine home runs, five triples, twenty doubles 
and 70 RBI. Perez earned a 3.91 GPA, while recording 
224 digs and thirty-three kills on the volleyball court. She also finished third on the team with 
thirty-eight service aces.  

• The eighth-seeded KCKCC baseball team nearly 
advanced back into the Region VI Super 
Regional Tournament championship game. 
A�er defea�ng No. 3 seed Butler 8-0 and No. 1 
seed Barton 8-2, the Blue Devils faced No. 4 
seed Cowley in an elimina�on game where the 
Tigers prevailed 4-1. The Blue Devils finished 
the season with a 40-23 overall record. 

• The KJCCC announced the Division II so�ball 
award winners. Blue Devils so�ball players 
Ruby Nola and Trinity Tauer made the list as 
Nola earned First Team honors and Tauer was 
named an Honorable Men�on.  Nola led the 
team with a .482 ba�ng average with fi�y-four 
hits. She also scored thirty-three runs, added 
ten doubles, two triples, three home runs and 
33 RBI in forty games. Tauer bated .387 on the 
season with forty-three hits, while adding 10 
RBI and a team leading nineteen stolen bases in thirty-nine games.  

• The KJCCC announced the Baseball East Division All-Conference selec�ons. Overall, there were 
eight players who earned recogni�on. Hector Candelas led the Blue Devils earning First Team 
honors, while Mathew Buffington and Alan Mercado earned Second Team.  Jase Woita, Lee Allen 
Jr., Jackson Mervosh, Gehrig Goldbeck and Jet Buck were all named an honorable men�on. 

o Candelas led the team this season with a .429 ba�ng average and 70 RBI. He also 
�ed with Woita for the team lead of twenty doubles.  

o Buffington was a mainstay behind the plate earning 362 putouts and thirty-one 
assists in fi�y-five games. He also bated .280 at the plate, hit seven home runs 
knocked in 53 RBI.  

o Mercado was one of the team's top relief pitchers, earning a 4-1 record and three 
saves on the mound. He also struck out forty-seven baters and recorded an 8.40 K/9 
ra�o.  

o Woita bated .411 on the season and was second on the team with twelve home 
runs. He also scored fi�y-nine runs and had a team-high 73 RBI.  

o Allen scored forty-two runs and knocked in 20 RBI on the season, while ba�ng .308.  

https://bluedevils.kckcc.edu/sports/sball/2022-23/bios/nola_ruby_jahm
https://bluedevils.kckcc.edu/sports/sball/2022-23/bios/tauer_trinity_wj12
https://bluedevils.kckcc.edu/sports/bsb/2022-23/bios/candelas_hector_t1jn
https://bluedevils.kckcc.edu/sports/bsb/2022-23/bios/buffington_matthew_wts3
https://bluedevils.kckcc.edu/sports/bsb/2022-23/bios/mercado_alan_liek
https://bluedevils.kckcc.edu/sports/bsb/2022-23/bios/woita_jase_13xb
https://bluedevils.kckcc.edu/sports/bsb/2022-23/bios/allen_jr._lee_heiq
https://bluedevils.kckcc.edu/sports/bsb/2022-23/bios/allen_jr._lee_heiq
https://bluedevils.kckcc.edu/sports/bsb/2022-23/bios/mervosh_jackson_tvoq
https://bluedevils.kckcc.edu/sports/bsb/2022-23/bios/goldbeck_gehrig_k5rg
https://bluedevils.kckcc.edu/sports/bsb/2022-23/bios/buck_jett_27qr


Student Affairs and Enrollment Management Board of Trustees June 2023 Report 
Page | 10   

 

o Mervosh, Goldbeck and Buck all bated over .300, while producing for the Blue Devil 
offense. Buck led the three with 51 RBI, while Goldbeck scored sixty-four runs. 
Mervosh scored forty-seven runs and knocked in 32 RBI on the season. 

• The KCKCC golf team posted a sixth-place finish at the 
District Tournament at Crestview Country Club. The Blue 
Devils scored a total of 925 in their final tournament of 
the season. Josh Killingsworth and Josiah Morris led the 
way as Killingsworth scored a 10-over-par 226 to place 
17th and Morris added a 11-over-par 227 placing 21st.  
Jack Stuckey scored a 19-over-par to take 36th and Nate 
Saporito placed 42nd scoring a 24-over-par. Turner 
Depperschmidt (46th), Parker Vancampen (47th) and Maddox Hight (51st) rounded out the 
team on the links.   

 

Counseling & Advocacy   
Submited by Linda Warner, LCPC, Director  
 
Selected Ac�vi�es, Programs, and Updates   

• OQS Diversity Club celebrated Lavender Gradua�on.   The club presented two gradua�ng 
transgender students with their rainbow cords. Both students graduated summa cum laude 
with perfect 4.0 GPAs!    

• Counselor Caseloads – As of 5-31-23, 122 students were provided 520 counseling sessions over 
the 2022-23 academic year. This is 21% increase in the number of students seeking counseling 
and a 17% increase in the total number of sessions provided to students from the 2021-22 
academic year. A�er adjus�ng for dually enrolled students, counselors provided counseling 
sessions to 4% of adult students enrolled at KCKCC in 2022-23.  

 

Military and Veteran Center   
Submited by Wade Abel, Director    

Selected Ac�vi�es, Programs, and Updates     

• The Veterans Center hosted an end of year picnic at Wyandote 
Lake for our Military Affiliated students and their families.                 

• The Student Veterans Organiza�on (SV0) supported the Wellness Center 5K. The execu�ve board 
all par�cipated as well as family members and the staff of the Veterans Center.  

• We had 31 Military Affiliated students par�cipate in the gradua�on ceremony. We will soon have 
dog tags made for them and add them to our Opera�on Gradua�on, Mission Complete display.  

  

https://bluedevils.kckcc.edu/sports/mgolf/2022-23/bios/killingsworth_josh_vwi1
https://bluedevils.kckcc.edu/sports/mgolf/2022-23/bios/morris_josiah_hn9p
https://bluedevils.kckcc.edu/sports/mgolf/2022-23/bios/stuckey_jack_i0c2
https://bluedevils.kckcc.edu/sports/mgolf/2022-23/bios/saporito_nate_jvdw
https://bluedevils.kckcc.edu/sports/mgolf/2022-23/bios/saporito_nate_jvdw
https://bluedevils.kckcc.edu/sports/mgolf/2022-23/bios/depperschmidt_turner_iqlg
https://bluedevils.kckcc.edu/sports/mgolf/2022-23/bios/depperschmidt_turner_iqlg
https://bluedevils.kckcc.edu/sports/mgolf/2022-23/bios/vancampen_parker_dbm0
https://bluedevils.kckcc.edu/sports/mgolf/2022-23/bios/hight_maddox_ef66


Student Affairs and Enrollment Management Board of Trustees June 2023 Report 
Page | 11   

 

 Registra�on and Records   
Submited by Theresa Holliday, Registrar   

Selected Ac�vi�es, Programs, and Updates   

• Enrollment and Gradua�on Verifica�on: Verifica�on of student enrollment status may be necessary 
for students to provide proof of educa�on for credit card companies, degree status, employment, 
insurance companies, loan deferment, student housing, or other purposes. This month the 
Registrar's Office performed sixty-eight enrollment or gradua�on verifica�ons.  

• Enrollment and schedule adjustment ac�vity: The right course selec�on can help students fit in 
their interests and learn more about a field they are genuinely interested in studying. In addi�on, 
the courses they choose can affect whether they finish your program within their intended 
�meframe. This month we processed eighty-seven grade changes.  

• Student Contact Informa�on Updates: When colleges cannot reach students due to an input error 
or because their informa�on has changed, they will miss essen�al details.  
Depending on the message or ac�vity, it could have catastrophic consequences. This month the 
Registrar's Office processed 126 student record changes. We resolved three student records in 
conjunc�on with the Business Office to provide missing Social Security Numbers for 1098T 
processing.   

• Major changes/catalog updates: To receive federal financial aid, grants, and scholarships, students 
must be pursuing a degree or cer�ficate in a major that is aid eligible. They must also take courses 
required for their program of study based on their Student Plan. This month the Registrar's Office 
processed 144 significant student changes and catalog updates.  

• Transfer Credit Evalua�on: Transfer credit evalua�on allows previous college credit to be evaluated 
for college transcripts, standardized examina�on scores, or career experience. Due to the 
importance of enrollment and the beginning of the semester, the Registrar's Office evaluated 
ninety-nine student records for degree audit excep�ons, devia�ons, waivers, or for pos�ng transfer 
credit equivalencies.                                                                                                                 

• Gradua�on Processing Ac�vity: College is important for many reasons, including long-term financial 
gain, job stability, career sa�sfac�on, and success outside the workplace. With more occupa�ons 
requiring advanced educa�on, a college degree or cer�ficate can be cri�cal to success in today's 
workforce.  

627 May 2023 gradua�on applica�ons were reviewed for creden�aling. 
• 578 were awarded degrees or cer�ficates. 
• Forty-nine were deemed ineligible due to incomplete grades, missing paperwork, grades, 

and GPA difficul�es. 
• Other than May 2023 - Gradua�on statements applied to Student Records 

 December 2022 – 7 
 July 2022 – 1 
 May 2022 – 1 
 December 2021 – 1 
 May 2021 - 1 

• Other than May 2023 – Gradua�on applica�ons processed. 
� July 2022 - 2 



Student Affairs and Enrollment Management Board of Trustees June 2023 Report 
Page | 12   

 

� December 2021 - 1 
� December 2022 – 3 
� May 2008 – 1 

                     *Fi�y-one addi�onal July 2023 gradua�on applica�ons were processed for a total of 144 
 
• Transcript Ac�vity: Incoming transcripts: Part of the KCKCC Admissions process is to submit all 

transcripts to KCKCC. High School transcripts are required for students who have graduated within 
the past five years.  

• Outgoing Transcripts processed:  756  
  Produced In-House: eighteen 
 Official from Ellucian:  nine 
 Official from Percep�ve Content:  three    
 Unofficial (fax, email, etc.):  six 

 Produced via Parchment:  738 (763 in 2022; 738 is 3.3% decrease from May 2022.) 
• eTranscript:  710 
• Paper Transcript:  twenty-eight 

 

 
Incoming transcripts are processed manually to determine if the person has applied to the College if 

they are a current student submi�ng transcripts to remove a hold or to have their transfer credits 
added to their KCKCC record.  

Incoming Transcripts processed:  429 (441 in 2022; 429 is 2.7% decrease from May 2022) 

• Received via Parchment: seventy-eight 
• Received via Clearinghouse: 122 
• Received via mail, fax, e-mail, and in-person: 229. 

 



Student Affairs and Enrollment Management Board of Trustees June 2023 Report 
Page | 13   

 

Student Ac�vi�es   
Submited by Andrica Wilcoxen, Director   

Selected Ac�vi�es, Programs, and Updates   

• The Na�onal Society of Leadership 
Success (NSLS) hosted the 2023 Spring 
Induc�on on May 12. The NSLS is an 
organiza�on that provides a life-
changing leadership program that 
helps students achieve personal growth, career success, and empowers them to have a 
posi�ve impact in their communi�es. Thirty KCKCC students were inducted into NSLS. For the 
students to be inducted, they each had to complete levels of the NSLS Leadership Training 
Program. These levels include: a one-hour orienta�on, comple�on of the DISC assessment, 
submit a Leadership packet about their goals and ac�on plan, par�cipate in three Speaker 
Broadcasts, and submit three reflec�on summaries. The speakers for the induc�on were Ms. 
Des�ny Vaughan, NSLS Student President, Ms. Anita Soto-Jimenez, KCKCC student and 
Veteran, Mr. Andrew Guevara-Alatorre, KCKCC Student Senate President, and Ms. Holly 
Edmonds, KCKCC Nursing Faculty.  

 

Student Financial Aid  
Submited by Tammy Reece, Director   
Selected Ac�vi�es, Programs, and Updates   

• Felicia Johnson was recently promoted to serve as the Assistant Director of Financial Aid at 
KCKCC. She previously served KCKCC as the Verifica�on Coordinator. A search is currently 
underway to fill the now vacant Verifica�on Coordinator posi�on.  

• Sean Neyland, Financial Aid Coordinator, recently passed the NASFAA Creden�al Exam for 
Consumer Informa�on. This was a comprehensive exam used to demonstrate knowledge of 
what federal regula�on requires for our campus to comply.  

• Karla Hipolito, Financial Aid Coordinator, will be atending the intermediate track for the 
Summer Ins�tute sponsored by the Rocky Mountain Associa�on of Financial Aid 
Administrators. She will study for a week learning all aspects of financial aid from financial 
aid leaders across the country.  

• Tammy Reece served as a Na�onal Associa�on task force member for the Resump�on of 
Loan Repayment. The report was recently published and distributed to ins�tu�ons across 
the country. This informa�on was also presented to the House Educa�on and Labor 
Commitee the week of May 9, 2023. 

  



Student Affairs and Enrollment Management Board of Trustees June 2023 Report 
Page | 14   

 

Financial Aid Applica�ons Received as of June 1, 2023 

Academic Year Total Number of Records Records Received in May 
2022-2023 8,349 123 
2021-2022 9,174 407 
2020-2021 9,855 443 

 

Financial Aid Disbursed to Student Accounts as of June 1, 2023 
Academic Year FALL SPRING SUMMER TOTAL 
2022-2023  $4,969,879 $4,268,362 $175 $9,238,416 
2021-2022 $7,589,033 $7,808,377 $718,144 $16,115,554 
2020-2021 $5,850,551 $5,152,575 $1,360,845 $12,363,971 

 
2022 Spring Sa�sfactory Progress Calculated  

Sa�sfactory academic progress (SAP) was reviewed for students who received federal financial aid for 
the Spring 2023. A three-year comparison is documented below. 

 

SAP Status Spring 
2021 

Spring 
2022 

Spring 
2023 

“Warning” – completion rate below 
66% and /or GPA below 2.0 

137 172 158 

“Exclusion” – completion rate below 
66% and/or GPA below 2.0 after a 
warning status 

70 102 99 

“Exclusion” – attempted over ninety-
seven credit hours. 

63 66 57 

No More Aid” – students have 
appealed and did not complete 
approved appeal conditions. 

26 22  19 

Satisfactory 1460 1067 1001 

** Students were notified through their student e-mail and given the information on how to appeal. ** 

  



Student Affairs and Enrollment Management Board of Trustees June 2023 Report 
Page | 15   

 

Student Housing     
Submited by Nicole Wilburn, Director   
    
Selected Ac�vi�es, Programs, and Updates   

• Following the Spring semester, students who did not sign a summer contract checked out of 
Centennial Hall by May 16 (or May 19 if gradua�ng).  

• We have approximately thirty students living in Centennial Hall for the Summer semester with less 
than 5 “new” students moving in on June 2 for the Summer semester. 

• Facili�es staff is working to repair rooms a�er the first Academic Year of occupancy. Rooms were in 
decent shape overall with mostly minor repairs needed. Facili�es staff outsourced the cleaning of 
the building and is collabora�ng with an outside contractor to manage cleaning the apartments. 

• We currently have thirteen students on the waitlist for the 2023-2024 Academic Year. June 15 is the 
deadline for student-athletes to sign their contracts and pay their applica�on fee/deposit. Any 
remaining beds not filled by student-athletes will be released to non-student-athletes on the 
waitlist. 

  
Upcoming Ac�vi�es and Programs    
• The Summer is a busy �me in Student Housing as we make plans for Fall Resident Assistant training 

which begins at the end of July. We are also planning for Fall move-in and Welcome Weekend. We 
are partnering with Marke�ng to create materials for new residents to communicate about move-in 
and Welcome Weekend. 

Student Success and Reten�on   
Submited by Brady Beckman, Director of Student Success and Reten�on  

  
 Selected Ac�vi�es, Programs, and Updates     

• The Student Success Center welcomed three new Student Success Advisors: 
o Steven Franklin- Pioneer Career Center Advisor 
o Valerie Mendoza- Reten�on and Career Coach 
o Madison Green- Student Success Advisor 

• Jeremiah Mccluney, Student Success Advisor, successfully completed the Kansas Community 
Colleges Leadership Ins�tute (KCCLI). 

• On May 25th, Brady Beckman represented the Student Success Center at the University of Missouri-
Kansas City for the Hispanic Development Fund’s Scholar Celebra�on. 

• The Student Success team implemented a “We Want You Back” campaign to encourage fall 
enrollment and comple�on for students who have recently “stopped out” at KCKCC. 

o Student Success Advisors contacted fi�y students who have recently stopped out, offering 
individualized success and comple�on plans based on their previous history. 

• The Student Success Center had 588 unique, in-person, student sign-ins during May. By comparison, 
during May 2022, the SSC had 398 unique student sign-ins. 

• Student Success Advisors completed 240 virtual enrollment and advising appointments. 
 

Placement Tes�ng Center Semester and Monthly Metrics 



Student Affairs and Enrollment Management Board of Trustees June 2023 Report 
Page | 16   

 

 
Upcoming Ac�vi�es and Programs    
• The Student Success Center is ac�vely developing new student orienta�on strategies to be 

implemented this summer, including: 
o Updated orienta�on materials, tutorials, and videos available on the KCKCC webpage. 
o Weekly, virtual, live pre-enrollment assistance sessions to be available for new students to 

begin in late June. The program will be called “Ac�vate KCKCC,” and will be facilitated by our 
Student Success Advisors. 

o On-campus orienta�on sessions will begin in early July. Tenta�vely, these will be offered 
weekly through the start of the semester.  

• Fall Enrollment is NOW OPEN. Advisors are working diligently to meet students' enrollment needs. 
Students may schedule appointments with advisors or stop in for walk-in advising that we offer 
every day from 8 am-6 pm.  

• With the addi�on of our new Reten�on and Career Coach, Valerie Mendoza, we can more 
inten�onally and proac�vely serve our sensi�ve student popula�ons, including KC Scholars, and 
students who are on academic proba�on or dismissal. 

o We also intend to create increased programming on campus to serve our First-Genera�on 
students. We are in the planning stages of crea�ng a First-Genera�on Student Advisory 
Council.  

Upward Bound Academy  
Submited by Veronica Knight, Director 

 
Selected Ac�vi�es, Programs, and Updates   

• Upward Bound Academy launched its inaugural summer program 
on June 5. Students will be engaged with college preparatory 
courses, college tours, and cultural explora�on during the next 5 
weeks ending in a week-long reward trip to Orlando Florida where 
students will visit various colleges, cultural events, and Universal 
Studios. 

• Upward Bound Academy recruited forty-seven students who face significant economic and social 
barriers to academic success.  

• On May 23, the memorandum of agreement for the Upward Bound Academy was signed by USD 
500 to formalize the partnership with the Upward Bound Academy staff and Washington and F.L. 
Schlagle High Schools.  



 

Marketing Division   

Marketing Division 
Kris Green, Chief Marketing & Institutional Image Officer 

Report Summary 

Community engagement survey results have been tabulated. Based on the employees 
who responded to the survey, they contribute 1,380 hours of community service, which 
translates to 16,560 hours of service each year. According to the Points of Light 
Foundation, $31.80 is the value of each hour of service. KCKCC employees have 
invested more than $526.608 through service to area communities. The numbers shared 
in the report are self-reported, and not all employees responded to the survey. 

Kris worked with the Centennial Celebration Committees to finalize important dates 
for the year-long celebration. KCKCC will kick-off Centennial activities at 
Convocation on August 7. In September, the college will celebrate with a Birthday Bash 
for employees and students at Main Campus on September 13, TEC on September 7 
and PCC on September 19. On April 13, KCKCC will host a Centennial Showcase to 
invite community members, alumni and others to the Main Campus to celebrate 
KCKCC’s 100th Anniversary. 

KCKCC’s Instagram reach has grown 500% this 

year.  Last year Instagram reached 11,730 people, 

and this year Instagram reached 81,559. Facebook 

reach increased by 35%. Last year Facebook 

reached 553,319 individuals, and this year the 

reach was 785,964. 

Rollie Skinner, graphic designer, continued 

assisting on the Perkins grant by designing Health 

Professions banners. Other highlights for the 

month include social media retractable banners for events, an advertisement for the KC 

Globe, and stickers for the upcoming Wyandotte County fair. 

Matt Fowler, Kelly Rogge, Tyler Scott, and Rollie Skinner all photographed the KCKCC 

commencement ceremonies, with Tyler capturing interviews and short videos. Kelly 

Rogge photographed the Nursing pinning and the LCF Graduation. Matthew Fowler 
photographed the unveiling ceremony of the Rita Blitt sculptures.  



   
 

2 
Marketing Division 

General Marketing 

Community Engagement Survey Results 

Based on the employees who responded to the survey, they contribute 1,380 hours of 
community service, which translates to 16,560 hours of service each year. According to 
the Points of Light Foundation, $31.80 is the value of each hour of service. KCKCC 
employees have invested more than $526.608 through service to area communities. 

KCKCC employees have a long-standing habit of community engagement. Employees 
who responded volunteer an average of 18 hours each month and have a17-year track-
record of continuous community service.  

In the past year, 43% of employee community service occurred in Wyandotte and 
Leavenworth counties, which equates to an $226,441 investment through service. 
Community-based, faith-based, educational, academic or industry, and pet services 
were the top five types of service provided by employees. 

The numbers shared in this report are self-reported, and not all employees responded 
to the survey. The results listed in this report serve as a representation of the extent 
KCKCC employees are engaged in the community. The President’s Office in 
conjunction with Marketing conducted the baseline survey during the spring semester 
of 2023 and will continue to annually distribute a similar survey during the spring 
semester. 

Centennial Celebration 

Kris worked with the Centennial Celebration Committees to finalize important dates 

for the year-long celebration. KCKCC will kick-off Centennial activities at 

Convocation on August 7. In September, the college will celebrate with a Birthday Bash 

for employees and students at Main Campus on September 13, TEC on September 7 

and PCC on September 19. On April 13, KCKCC will host a Centennial Showcase to 

invite community members, alumni and others to the Main Campus to celebrate 

KCKCC’s 100th Anniversary. 

  



   
 

3 
Marketing Division 

Video Production 

Kris worked with college divisions to complete a video series. Videos were completed 

for the following programs: Fire Science, Computer Technology, Cybersecurity, 

Cosmetology, Nail Technician and Electrical Technology. 

Meetings and Training 

Kris continues to work on the Marketing Plan with the Marketing Advisory Committee 

and President’s Cabinet. She also met with the KCKCC Foundation to discuss 

Centennial Celebration plans.   

Kris also served on the Board Marketing Sub-Committee for Community Housing of 

Wyandotte County this month 

From June 1-3, Kris attended the AACC Future Leader’s Institute in Washington, D.C. 

This was a impactful conference that focused on learning about college administration 

and leadership models in higher education. 

Graphic Design 

Rollie Skinner, graphic designer, continued assisting on the Perkins grant by designing 

Health Professions banners. Other highlights for the month include social media 

retractable banners for events, an advertisement for the KC Globe, and stickers for the 

upcoming Wyandotte County fair.  

 

 



   
 

4 
Marketing Division 

• Social media event banner 

 

  



   
 

5 
Marketing Division 

 

• Health Professions banner 

 

 

 



   
 

6 
Marketing Division 

• KC Globe advertisement 

 

 

Athletics  

Tyler Scott, Athletics and Activities Media Specialist, assisted with graduation 

photography and other photography requests. Tyler worked on Centennial story 

assignments, including a feature on the 2016 Women’s basketball national 

championship team. He completed the Athletics wrap-up and began work on the 

Wellness Center wrap-up.  

  



   
 

7 
Marketing Division 

Social Media 

Kelly Rogge, Public Information Manager, focused heavily on celebrating graduation, 

GED graduation and our TEC Perkins grant programs. The Nursing Pinning 

ceremony, the Rita Blitt double unveiling ceremony, commencement and the Cinco de 

Mayo Garnacha festival were all popular posts. Facebook and Instagram reach were 

highly elevated due to boosting several posts for the TEC Perkins grant.  

KCKCC’s Instagram reach has grown 500% this year.  Last year Instagram reach was 

11,730 people, and this year Instagram reach was 81,559. Facebook increased by 35%. 

Last year Facebook reached 553,319 individuals, and this year the reach was 785,964. 

 

 

 

 



   
 

8 
Marketing Division 

 

 



   
 

9 
Marketing Division 

 

 



   
 

10 
Marketing Division 

 

 



   
 

11 
Marketing Division 

 

 



   
 

12 
Marketing Division 

 

• Social Media Data 

 

 

12679
12706

12890

12550
12600
12650
12700
12750
12800
12850
12900
12950

March April May

Facebook Followers

11524
11548

11672

11450

11500

11550

11600

11650

11700

March April May

Facebook Likes

97,261 118,585

308,215

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

February March April

Facebook Post Reach



   
 

13 
Marketing Division 

 

 

 

Web Administration 

Matthew Fowler, Web Administrator, created a special section of the homepage for the 

2023 Commencement Ceremony. Matt also designed the Employee Recognition and 

Retirement Ceremony PowerPoint slide presentation and volunteered at the KCKCC 

promotional booth at the Rock the Dotte concert on May 10.  

 

2,826

2,832

2,821

2,815

2,820

2,825

2,830

2,835

March April May

Twitter Followers

4,578

5,788
6,485

0
1,000
2,000
3,000
4,000
5,000
6,000
7,000

March April May

Twitter Impression

1,785

1,804

1,837

1,740

1,760

1,780

1,800

1,820

1,840

1,860

February March April

Instagram Followers

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

January February March

Instagram Reach



   
 

14 
Marketing Division 

• Rock the Dotte 

 

 

Photography 

Matt Fowler, Kelly Rogge, Tyler Scott, and Rollie Skinner all photographed the KCKCC 

commencement ceremonies, with Tyler capturing interviews and short videos. Kelly 

Rogge photographed the Nursing pinning and the LCF Graduation. Matthew Fowler 
photographed the unveiling ceremony of the Rita Blitt sculptures. 

 

 

 

 



   
 

15 
Marketing Division 

Print Shop 

In the Print Shop, the month of May was entirely dedicated on completing Graduation 

projects, while also prioritizing the timely handling of end-of-semester projects for 

faculty and staff.  

General Website Information 

Marketing has begun the process of redesigning the KCKCC website. The first steps 

have been taken in the form of various focus groups in which marketing has asked 

students for their opinions on the usability of our current website. This is just the first 

step in a lengthy process. More information will be made available as the project 

progresses. 

 

Top Webpages for May 2023 

Webpage Pageviews 

Degrees and Certificates 10,561 

Class Schedule 4,194 

Steps to Enrollment 3,633 

Academic Calendar 2,306 

Get Ready 2,300 

 



1 
 

 

 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES REPORT 
FINANCE, FACILITY SERVICES, & POLICE DEPARTMENT 

DR. SHELLEY KNEUVEAN, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
JUNE 2023 REPORT 

 

HIGHLIGHTS 

 

• Work continues to prepare the FY24 proposed budget for consideration by the Board of 
Trustees. 
 

• The bookstore is collaborating with several instructors to move from physical books to 
Inclusive Access digital materials. This will significantly lower the costs that students pay for 
course materials this coming fall.  

 

• Facility Services completed install of Phase 5 Learning Spaces furniture, supported eight (8) 
graduation ceremonies, and sealed and striped the TEC parking lot. 

 

• Police continues to fill positions with new officers, with only two open sworn positions 
currently. 

 
  

https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiJkYjs3MXeAhVkzoMKHWNEAPEQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://www.kckcc.edu/about/campus-map.html&psig=AOvVaw20YsvTqLqP6ntHNMILeeFh&ust=1541798383909650


2 
 

 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES REPORT 
FINANCE, FACILITY SERVICES, & POLICE DEPARTMENT 

DR. SHELLEY KNEUVEAN, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

JUNE 2023 REPORT 

 

FINANCE – DR. SHELLEY KNEUVEAN, CFO 

 

• Work continues to prepare the FY24 proposed budget for consideration by the Board of 
Trustees. 

 

• The team is beginning the process of preparing for the annual financial audit of the college 
finance, single audit (federal grants), and financial aid audit. Novak Birks LLC has been 
contracted to perform the College’s annual comprehensive and financial aid audit, single audit 
of federal grants, financial audit of the Foundation, and preparation of the 990.  

 
Auxiliary 
 

• May Sales are $28,100.40, up 94% over last year. The Bookstore assisted 3,672 customers, up 
17% over last year. The Bookstore provided all our graduating students with regalia.  

 

• The bookstore is collaborating with several instructors to move from physical books to 
Inclusive Access digital materials. This will significantly lower the costs that students pay for 
course materials this coming fall.  
 

• The Bookstore and Student Services came together in Spring of 2023 to provide students 
with financial literacy, resume and interviewing techniques. Three sessions were hosted, 
open to all students, regarding credit score, financial literacy, and career planning. 

          
FACILITY SERVICES – CHRIS GARDNER, DIRECTOR 
 

• Facility Services set up eight on campus graduations – Nurses Pinning, two KCKCC graduations 
and five USD 500 graduations. 
 

• Deep cleaning and refresh of all Centennial Hall rooms and common areas. Hammock stands 
built and Hammocks installed at Centennial Hall.                 

• Completed install of Phase 5 Learning Spaces furniture. 

• Completed RTU install for Kansas Bureau of Investigations located at KCKCC. 

 

https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiJkYjs3MXeAhVkzoMKHWNEAPEQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://www.kckcc.edu/about/campus-map.html&psig=AOvVaw20YsvTqLqP6ntHNMILeeFh&ust=1541798383909650


3 
 

 
TEC 1 parking lot sealcoat and striping. 
(Before and After pictures) 

 

 

Set up and teardown of Rita Blitt art 
unveiling ceremony including refreshing 
pond area. The waterfall on the north end 
is now operation. 

 

 
 
COLLEGE POLICE – ROBERT PUTZKE, CHIEF 
 

• New officer Josh Reynolds will graduate from the Kansas Law Enforcement Training Center on 
June 30 and new officer Val Davenport started with the department June 8. 
 

• Chief Robert Putzke and Deputy Chief Jason Sievers will attend the IACLEA (International 
Association of Campus Law Enforcement Administrators) national conference June 26-30. 
 

• All officers will finish their state mandated training for the year by June 30. 
 
 



Kansas City Kansas Community College

Monthly Financial Summary

Apr-23 May-23 Monthly Change Comments

144,679,345$           144,371,375$           (307,970)$                   

41,193,115$             42,173,853$             980,738$                     

103,486,230$           102,197,522$           (1,288,708)$                H1

Apr-23 May-23 Monthly Change Comments

74,860,199$             75,783,682$             923,483$                     H2

61,741,522$             68,102,946$             6,361,424$                 H3

13,118,677$             7,680,736$               (5,437,941)$                H4

Average monthly burn rate =$6.86M

H1

H2

H3

H5

H4

R1

R2

The increased number of retirements, resignations, and difficulty in hiring is a challenge facing the country as well as the metro area.  

Leavenworth County has the highest weekly wage earnings followed by Wyandotte County in the state of Kansas, and neighboring Johnson 

County has the 3rd highest weekly wage.  The metro offers many opportunities for employment at competitive wages, making it difficult to 

obtain quality candidates for college position openings.  This is affecting the police department, student affairs, and facilities in particular. 

YTD Operating Expenses

Increase/(Decrease ) in Net Revenue

 Current Month - Burn Rate 

Highlights / Key Financial Initiatives

Expenses for the monthl were slightly lower than average.  The largest expense category is salaries and benefits and supplies & other 

operating expenses.  As a note, this month includes the retroactive pay for faculty was posted this month for July 1 - mid May.  These funds 

were budgeted but were not paid until the faculty contract was approved by the Board, President, and ratified by the faculty.

Risks / Issues

The unemployment rate for the State of Kansas is currently 2.9% (March 2023).  Wyandotte County's unemployment rate has steadily 

increased over the past several months and is now at 4% (March 2023).  Historically, low unemployment rates trend with low enrollment rates 

as potential students are employed in the workforce, rather than enrolling in college.   As this unemployment rate increases while new job 

opportunities are also increasing, KCKCC is in the unique position to provide job related training to train workers to fill new jobs and positively 

impact the unemployment rate.

Additional net revenue was $923,483, comprised of $350,000 in tuition and fees, approximately $200,000 in federal financial aid, 

approximately $110,000 in auxiliary revenue, and $225,000 in investment income.

Net revenue decreased by $5.4 million this month.  Next month a substantial property tax distribution will be made.  Additionally, final 

projections of annual net revenue is being prepared and will be available in July.  

One investment was made during the month of April, a $3.5 million 12 month CD was made with Security Bank for 4.75% IR.  In early May, a 

$3 million 6 month CD with Commerce Bank with a 5.05% IR.

May - YTD FY2023

Summary: Net Position

Total Assets

Net position decreased by $1.3 million month to month comparison.  Net position is the difference between assets (current and noncurrent 

assets) and liabilities (current and noncurrent liabilities). As planned, the net position went down due to operating expenses exceeding 

additional revenue for the monthly. A positive net position demonstrates financial stability of an institution and KCKCC financial position is 

healthy.  

Total Liabilities

Increase /(Decrease) in Net Position

Summary:  Revenue and Expenses

YTD Total Revenues

Kansas City Kansas Community College - Finance Committee



ADJUSTED
BUDGET YTD FORECAST YTD COVID  VARIANCE PERCENT 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL RELATED ACTUAL USED ACTUAL
FY 2023 5/31/2023 2023 5/31/2022 GRANTS TO BUDGET TO BUDGET

Operating Revenues:
Student Tuition and Fees 10,726,626$    9,502,610$      10,117,755$    9,683,638$      (1,224,016)$     88.59%
Federal Grants and Contracts 9,501,288        8,738,603        1     11,353,152      24,255,476      16,718,304      (762,685)          91.97%
State Contracts 968,731           6,841,609        1,048,731        646,838           5,872,878        706.24%
Private Gifts, Grants & Contracts 283,100           164,262           283,100           262,100           (118,838)          58.02%
Auxiliary Enterprise Revenue 3,106,440        3,117,930        3,106,440        1,943,925        11,490             100.37%
Other Operating Revenue 275,600           710,620           275,600           337,535           435,020           257.84%

Total Operating Revenues 24,861,785      29,075,634      26,184,778      37,129,512      4,213,849        116.95%

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
County Property Taxes 51,930,018      32,703,475      51,930,018      27,243,392      (19,226,543)     62.98%
State Aid 10,009,582      10,359,582      10,359,582      10,359,582      350,000           103.50%
SB155 AID 3,125,367        3,153,507        3,153,507        2,976,540        28,140             100.90%
Investment Income 75,000             994,397           233,200           86,741             919,397           1325.86%
Interest Expense on Capital Asset Debt (1,125,935)       (502,913)          (1,125,935)       (602,284)          623,022           44.67%
Transfer from Capital Reserves -                   -                   3,534,274        -                   0.00%

Total Nonoperating Revenues 64,014,032      46,708,048      68,084,646      40,063,971      (17,305,984)     72.97%

Total Revenues 88,875,817      75,783,682      94,269,424      77,193,483      (13,092,135)     85.27%

Operating Expenses:
Salaries & Benefits 45,375,750      40,767,605      46,341,750      37,560,063      (4,608,145)       89.84%
Contractual Services 1,749,427        1,816,667        2,070,427        1,574,593        67,240             103.84%
Supplies & Other Operating Expenses 14,643,001      11,800,780      14,723,001      11,055,229      9,828,512        (2,842,221)       80.59%
Utilities 1,997,500        1,933,460        1,997,500        1,617,816        (64,040)            96.79%
Repairs & Maintenance to Plant 5,282,534        1,611,842        10,347,672      1,567,299        (3,670,692)       30.51%
Scholarships & Financial Aid 8,062,952        7,186,806        1     8,062,952        13,782,351      6,439,252        (876,146)          89.13%
Strategic Opportunities 1,250,000        -                  2     1,250,000        -                   (1,250,000)       0.00%
Contingency 250,000           150,786           200,000           46,659             (99,214)            60.31%
Debt Service 3,676,000        2,835,000        3,676,000        2,720,000        (841,000)          77.12%

Total Operating Expenses 82,287,164      68,102,946      88,669,302      69,924,010      (14,184,218)     82.76%

Increase/(Decrease) in Net Revenue 6,588,653$      7,680,736$      5,600,122$      7,269,473$      1,092,083$      

1   In FY22 Federal Grants and Contracts Revenue included COVID funds drawn for student relief and institutional costs
In FY22 Scholarships & Financial Aid Expenses included COVID relief payments to students

2   

KANSAS CITY KANSAS COMMUNITY COLLEGE
 STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES

YTD MAY 2023

We have utilized $562,556 of the strategic initiative funding to date.  

Page 1 of 6



FY2023 Annual FY2022 Annual FY2021 Annual FY2020 Annual
Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget

Operating Revenues 29,075,634$    24,861,785$    37,129,512$    1 34,420,330$    25,887,023$    26,816,600$    23,153,375$    27,315,064$    
Non-Operating Revenues, Net 46,708,048       64,014,032       40,063,971       57,762,262       38,729,846       57,320,243       37,520,116       57,959,925       

Total Revenues 75,783,682       88,875,817       77,193,483       92,182,592       64,616,869       84,136,843       60,673,491       85,274,989       

Operating Expenses 68,102,946       82,287,164       69,924,010       2 85,687,565       65,093,599       79,144,659       65,510,808       80,812,679       

Increase/(Decrease) in Net Revenue 7,680,736$       6,588,653$       7,269,473$       6,495,027$       (476,730)$         4,992,184$       (4,837,317)$     4,462,310$       

1 Covid revenues of $16,718,304 received in FY2022
2 Covid relief of $6,439,252 paid to students in FY 22; $9,828,412 Covid Institutional funds spent in FY22

Unaudited
YTD YTD Year-End

FY2023 FY2022 FY2022

Assets
Current Assets 66,788,614$    55,043,929$    70,440,047$    
Noncurrent Assets 77,582,761       73,344,932       71,934,845       

     Total Assets 144,371,375$  128,388,861$  142,374,892$  

Liabilities
Current Liabilities 7,577,373$       9,347,125$       12,702,984$    
Noncurrent Liabilities 34,596,480       37,633,184       34,596,480       

     Total Liabilities 42,173,853       46,980,309       47,299,464       

     Net Position 102,197,522    81,408,552       95,075,428       

Total Liabilities and Net Position 144,371,375$  128,388,861$  142,374,892$  

KANSAS CITY KANSAS COMMUNITY COLLEGE
Information Regarding Net Position

YTD MAY 2023

Summary Statement of Net Position

Summary Statement of Revenue & Expenses

Page 2 of 6



YTD PRIOR YEAR
FINANCIAL INSTITUTION FUND NO. FUND CHECKING INVESTMENTS 31-May-23 31-May-22

BROTHERHOOD BANK 25 FEDERAL PROGRAMS 552,083$               552,083$         526,825$          
BROTHERHOOD BANK 61 CAPITAL OUTLAY 3,178,461$           3,178,461$      3,065,719$      
BROTHERHOOD BANK CD 1 61 Investment 3,187,012$         3,187,012$      3,183,827$      
BROTHERHOOD BANK 74 BOARD SCHOLARSHIP 502,329$               502,329$         333,049$          

LIBERTY BANK CD 2 n/a Investment 509,976$            509,976$         508,684$          

COUNTRY CLUB BANK 13/14 ABE-CONT. EDUCATION 233,597$               233,597$         314,956$          
COUNTRY CLUB BANK 72 INCIDENTAL (AGENCY) 217,334$               217,334$         262,434$          

SECURITY BANK 11 GENERAL FUND 46,725,325$         46,725,325$   37,221,476$    
SECURITY BANK 15 TECHNICAL ED FUND 765,591$               765,591$         820,821$          
SECURITY BANK 16 STUDENT UNION 1,451,944$           1,451,944$      1,151,977$      

  (AUXILIARY SERVICES)
SECURITY BANK 63 STUDENT HOUSING -$                        -$                  4,690,485$      

  (CONSTRUCTION FUND)
SECURITY BANK CD 3 n/a Investment 3,500,000$         3,500,000$      -$                   

COMMERCE BANK CD 4 n/a Investment 3,000,000$         3,000,000$      -$                   

UMB BANK * 17 PAYROLL -$                        -$                  -$                  

TOTAL 53,626,664$         10,196,988$      63,823,652$   52,080,253$    

* Payroll clearing account normally carries a  $-0- balance unless tax payment deadline falls after the close of the current month.
1 CD Maturity Date 12/27/2023 @ 4.65%
2 CD Maturity Date 3/5/2024 @ .33%
3 CD Maturity Date 4/27/2024 @ 4.75%
4 CD Maturity Date 11/13/2023 @ 5.05%

KANSAS CITY KANSAS COMMUNITY COLLEGE
BANK BALANCES PER GENERAL LEDGER

Page 3 of 6



July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023
July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022

Month FY2023 FY2022 FY2023 FY2022 FY2023 FY 2022 FY2023 FY2022 FY2023 FY2022
Operational Operational Operational Operational Net Net Transfers Transfers Cash Cash

Cash Cash Cash Cash Change Change In/Out In/Out Balance Balance
Inflow Inflow Outflow Outflow  

June 47,909,838       33,389,214       
July 1,804,276         2,723,922         (6,759,717)       (6,357,332)       (4,955,441)       (3,633,410)       (147,514)           42,806,883       29,755,804       
August 9,089,842         10,086,186       (6,009,394)       (10,957,213)     3,080,448         (871,027)           73,658              (1,712)               45,960,989       28,883,065       
September 8,880,290         9,451,036         (9,832,678)       (11,990,740)     (952,388)           (2,539,704)       1,580                45,008,601       26,344,941       
October 7,164,767         10,893,451       (11,545,519)     (4,301,288)       (4,380,752)       6,592,163         40,627,849       32,937,104       
November 3,662,796         2,223,477         (7,679,758)       (8,911,138)       (4,016,962)       (6,687,661)       36,610,887       26,249,443       
December 1,618,093         3,934,558         (6,718,546)       (7,770,982)       (5,100,453)       (3,836,424)       31,510,434       22,413,019       
January 33,295,279       29,192,526       (7,725,449)       (7,384,183)       25,569,830       21,808,343       57,080,264       44,221,362       
February 4,999,056         8,597,739         (7,393,650)       (9,236,101)       (2,394,594)       (638,362)           54,685,670       43,583,000       
March 11,645,157       9,339,673         (8,968,330)       (11,142,860)     2,676,827         (1,803,187)       57,362,497       41,779,813       
April 6,482,046         7,609,775         (11,842,653)     (8,742,160)       (5,360,607)       (1,132,385)       52,001,890       40,647,428       
May 3,599,831         3,258,874         (8,110,805)       (5,864,005)       (4,510,974)       (2,605,131)       47,490,916       38,042,297       
June 20,156,581       20,156,581       (10,289,040)     (10,289,040)     9,867,541         9,867,541         57,358,457       47,909,838       

Totals 112,398,014    117,467,798    (102,875,539)   (102,947,042)   9,522,475         (73,856)             (132)                  

Bold = Actual
92,241,433       (92,586,499)     

GL Balance General Fund 46,725,325$     
TEC Fund 765,591$          

47,490,916$    

Kansas City Kansas Community College
Cashflow Analysis (General & TEC  Funds)

Page 4 of 6



Original Original Original Refinance New Balance Payments FY23 Less Balance
Debt Issuance Issue Date Maturity Date Principal Issued Principal Issued Maturity Date 6/30/2022 Amount Interest 6/30/2023

COP-Capital Lease Oblig 1      7/1/2013 6/1/2027 $5,750,401 $1,585,000 4/1/2023 $415,000 $428,488 $13,488 $0
2      3/1/2014 5/1/2029 $8,045,000 $4,025,000 4/1/2026 $2,500,000 $646,940 $76,940 $1,930,000
3      3/1/2020 $11,095,000 4/1/2029 $7,730,000 $2,129,200 $309,200 $5,910,000
4      3/1/2020 $4,270,000 4/1/2029 $4,230,000 $133,376 $103,376 $4,200,000

Revenue Bond Oblig 5      1/27/2021 1/31/2053 $19,840,000 NA NA $19,840,000 $697,931 $697,931 $19,840,000

$33,635,401 $20,975,000 $34,715,000 $4,035,935 $1,200,935 $31,880,000

1      Technical Education Center 
2      Energy Efficiency Renovations
3      Refinance of future payments of 2010 (Jewell Center Renovations), 2013 (Technical Education Center), and 2014 (Energy Efficiency Renovations) Series
4      Refinance of future payments of 2010 (Jewell Center Renovations), 2013 (Technical Education Center), and 2014 (Energy Efficiency Renovations) Series
5      Student Housing

KANSAS CITY KANSAS COMMUNITY COLLEGE
Debt Summary
YTD May 2023

Page 5 of 6



Description Amount Description Amount
July
August State Aid - Disbursement 1 5,004,791$     Insurance ($628,370)

(Annual Premium)
September Tax Distribution 2,845,034$     Financial Aid Refunds ($3,150,000)

Current Tax 982,000$       COP - Interest on Debt ($206,288)
Heavy Truck 992$               (Certificates of
Motor Vehicle 1,550,000$    Participation)
Commercial Motor Vehicle 11,500$          
Motor Vehicle Excise 10,792$          
RV 7,000$            
Delinquent 282,750$       
Financial Aid Draw 3,300,000$     

October Tax Distribution 808,695$        COP - Interest on Debt ($38,470)
Current Tax 2,750$            
Motor Vehicle 582,600$       
Commercial Motor Vehicle 2,500$            
RV 1,489$            
Delinquent 219,356$       
SB  155 Funding - Disb 3,125,367$     

November COP - Interest on Debt ($6,744)
December
January Tax Distribution 25,465,982$   

Current Tax 23,530,870$  
Heavy Truck 7,571$            
Motor Vehicle 937,900$       
Commercial Motor Vehicle 20,513$          
Motor Vehicle Excise 12,805$          
RV 3,975$            
Industrial Revenue Bonds 539,898$       
Delinquent 412,450$       
State Aid - Disbursement 2  

February Financial Aid Draw 3,075,000$     Financial Aid Refunds ($2,650,000)
March Tax Distribution 1,871,905$     COP - P & I ($2,056,288)

Current Tax 1,114,519$    (Principal and Interest)
Heavy Truck 3,684$            
Motor Vehicle 422,055$       
Commercial Motor Vehicle 135,148$       
RV 1,199$            
Delinquent 195,300$       

April COP - P & I ($608,470)
May COP - P & I ($421,744)
June Tax Distribution 19,245,292$   

Current Tax 17,628,000$  
Heavy Truck 2,520$            
Motor Vehicle 1,107,400$    
Commercial Motor Vehicle 31,075$          
RV 7,006$            
Industrial Revenue Bonds 217,301$       
Delinquent 251,990$       

Predictive Model of Significant Annual Cash Flows - FY2023
Inflows Outflows



DATE KWH DOLLARS CENTS DATE KWH DOLLARS CENTS
PER KWH PER KWH

1/30/2019 609,645 $83,726 13.73 1/30/2020 501,163 $72,729 14.51
2/27/2019 625,832 $80,202 12.81 2/28/2020 507,458 $71,243 14.03
3/28/2019 554,141 $78,123 14.09 3/30/2020 488,515 $73,813 15.10
4/29/2019 510,325 $73,381 14.37 4/30/2020 279,539 $47,494 16.90
5/30/2019 441,276 $66,651 15.10 5/28/2020 296,200 $53,723 18.13
6/27/2019 436,477 $63,796 14.61 6/30/2020 412,142 $61,005 14.80
7/31/2019 537,680 $64,553 12.00 7/30/2020 456,500 $64,387 14.10
8/29/2019 494,320 $67,133 13.58 8/28/2020 417,396 $58,039 13.90
9/27/2019 485,749 $63,507 13.07 9/29/2020 478,281 $67,910 14.10

10/30/2019 528,274 $73,213 13.85 10/29/2020 479,090 $75,859 15.80
11/26/2019 440,981 $65,663 14.89 11/25/2020 443,240 $65,829 14.85
12/30/2019 524,192 $72,943 13.91 12/30/2020 595,900 $77,901 13.07

year 2019 6,188,892 $852,891 13.83 year 2020 5,355,424 $789,932 14.94

1/28/2021 581,940 $75,663 13.00 1/31/2022 678,586 $89,277 13.15
2/25/2021 664,720 $76,586 11.52 2/25/2022 585,600 $81,504 13.91
3/30/2021 568,580 $73,401 12.90 3/30/2022 624,643 $80,879 12.94
4/29/2021 516,220 $64,693 12.53 4/28/2022 521,442 $76,167 14.60
5/27/2021 446,300 $57,583 12.90 5/31/2022 527,597 $74,075 14.04
6/29/2021 529,020 $58,806 11.11 6/29/2022 571,473 $75,749 13.25
7/29/2021 484,980 $61,788 12.73 7/28/2022 453,355 $70,775 15.61
8/31/2021 551,720 $70,049 12.69 8/30/2022 619,347 $83,785 13.52
9/29/2021 521,420 $68,641 13.16 9/29/2022 511,384 $83,310 16.29

10/31/2021 522,405 $70,567 13.50 10/28/2022 507,700 $76,258 15.02
11/29/2021 570,895 $74,484 13.04 11/29/2022 591,378 $83,176 14.06
12/31/2021 471,750 $68,536 14.52 12/29/2022 684,310 $94,139 13.75

year 2021 6,429,950 $820,797 12.80 year 2022 6,876,815 $969,094 14.18

1/30/2023 640,596 $88,908 13.87
2/27/2023 562,854 $86,749 15.41
3/30/2023 590,439 $87,449 14.81
4/27/2023 443,737 $74,086 16.69
5/30/2023 549,246 $80,597 14.67

ELECTRICAL USAGE



1 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES REPORT 
HUMAN RESOURCES 
JUNE 2023 

 
Human Resources Summary 

• The Human Resources Department began collaborating with the Marketing & Institutional Image 
Department to develop a strategy and proposal for promoting available positions at KCKCC 
through multiple advertising channels. 
 

• New Supervisor Training took place June 5-7. Ten to sixteen supervisors attended each session.  
 

• The monthly professional development series continued this month with a session offered by 
Traci Dillavou entitled Constructive Communication in the Workplace: How to Support 
Colleagues Using Confirming Communication Strategies. Eight participants attended. 

 
• CEIM is partnering with Community Education and the Art Gallery for planning and 

volunteering during a week of events with students, faculty, staff, and community members for 
Kids on Campus. Events will include: 

• Monday, June 19th – Juneteenth Festival 
• Tuesday, June 20th – Asian Culture Event 
• Wednesday, June 21st –  Latin Culture Event 
 

• The benefits coordinator has started recording brief videos regarding the health benefits offered at 
KCKCC. These videos will serve as a resource for new hires.   

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES REPORT 
HUMAN RESOURCES 
JUNE 2023 

 
Human Resources Full Report 

Human Resources 

The Human Resources Department is working together with the Marketing & Institutional Image 
Department to create a strategy and proposal for advertising open KCKCC positions. This proposal will 
center around the expenses related to social media, radio, and print advertising campaigns. 
 
Training and Development 

Our monthly professional development series 
continued this month with a session offered by Traci 
Dillavou, 2023 Henry Louis Excellence in 
Teaching Award Winner and KCKCC Associate 
Professor, on Tuesday, May 23, 2023, from noon-
1:00pm entitled Constructive Communication in the 
Workplace: How to Support Colleagues Using 
Confirming Communication Strategies. Eight 
participants attended. 
 
 
 

 
New professional development sessions are in development and will 
be rolled out to all employees in the next few months. Time 
Management is being offered in June. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
New Supervisor Training took place June 5-7. Ten to sixteen supervisors attended each session. 
Evaluations were overwhelmingly positive. 
 
KCPDC held its annual Professional Development Conference on May 24th. Twelve employees from 
KCKCC attended. Sheila Joseph, Talent Development Manager, co-presented a breakout session titled, 
Inspiring a Creative Approach to Build a Motivational Mindset, with Baker University’s HR Director. 
This session will be adapted, modified, and offered to KCKCC supervisors in fall 2023. In addition, 
Sheila will be co-Chair of the board of KCPDC for 2023-2024. 
 



3 
 

A short survey was sent to all employees at the end of April to assess interest in an all-employee 
professional development event to be held in July 2023. Possible presenters have been identified and 
contacted, and plans are currently in development.  
 

Employment 

KCKCC currently has 54 positions open and posted. 

• 7 full-time faculty 
• 17 full-time staff 
• 14 part-time staff 
• 16 adjunct faculty 

Benefits 

The benefits coordinator started recording brief videos regarding the health benefits offered by KCKCC. 
As previously mentioned, these videos will serve as a resource for new hires to access information about 
the college's benefits at their convenience. 
 
Center for Equity, Inclusion and Multicultural Engagement (CEIM) 

CEIM Operations 

Mike Torres joined KCKCC on 5/15 and has begun connecting with community partners in addition to 
inviting directors to connect so CEIM can begin regular engagement with campus and community. Mike 
has started planning for the Equity and Inclusion Council; budget; strategic plan; marketing; culture and 
inclusivity assessment; basic needs for students, faculty, and staff; student organizations; employee 
resource groups; hiring; training; and more. 
 
CEIM has participated in professional development opportunities including:  

• Supervisory Leadership Training | University of Kansas | Virtual | Mike 
• Workplace DE&I: What is Currently Happening and How to Navigate | Husch Blackwell 

| Virtual. 
• National Conference on Race and Ethnicity | The University of Oklahoma | New Orleans| 

Mike 
• Trauma & Resilience Professional Certification | Florida State University | Virtual | Mike 

 
Community Engagement Initiatives 
 
Kids on Campus: CEIM is partnering with Community Education and the Art Gallery for planning and 
volunteering during a week of events with students, faculty, staff, and community members. Events will 
include: 

• Monday, June 19th – Juneteenth Festival 
• Tuesday, June 20th – Asian Culture Event 
• Wednesday, June 21st – Latin Culture Event 

 



  
 

  
 

 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES REPORT, JUNE 2023 
INFORMATION SERVICES DIVISION 

Peter Gabriel, Chief Information Officer 

 

HIGHLIGHTS 

 Wireless infrastructure upgrade project has been completed. 
 

 Authentication to Tableau update from local authentication to the application to 
Security Assertion Markup Language (SAML) to provide Single Sign-On (SSO) and Multi-
Factor capabilities. 
 

 Windows Auto-patch manages all Windows features, quality, and security updates for 
all KCKCC-owned computers. 
 

 Analytics links in the main report for several recorded or live streamed events. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  
 

  
 

 

ACADEMIC SUPPORT 

 Continued development of the Information Services Master Plan. 
 Worked with Student Success Center on Bookings issues.  
 Supported graduation coordinating overflow access.  
 Planned and implemented Staff Senate picnic.  
 Began updating directory files and photos.  
 Worked on ID card implementation and developed new IDs for Police, Upward Bound, 

and student workers and updated instructions on the use.  
 Participated in New Employee Orientation with HR Department.  
 Functioned as the announcer for the Kansas City Kansas Community College baseball 

team during the first round of playoffs.  
 Attended various meetings of college governance groups, including the President’s 

Extended Cabinet, Staff Senate, Board of Trustees, and the Board Finance 
Committee.  
 

COMPUTING SERVICES 

 Two hundred and eleven tickets were issued during May 2023. 
o Two hundred tickets were resolved.  

 The average time spent on each ticket was 3.65 days.  
 Three hundred and seventy-six Helpdesk calls were taken in May 2023.  

o The average time per call was 3.475 minutes.  

            

58%26%

4%
4%

2%

2%
4%

May-23
Phone
Support

Computer/pe
ripherals/har
dware
Online
Education

Applications/
Software

Media
Services

Web Services

Network/Loin
g support



  
 

  
 

 

MEDIA SERVICES 

 Set up and recorded the monthly Board of Trustees Meeting. I made a broadcast 
copy for the college’s cable channel and a video archival of the Board of Trustees 
Meeting. 

 Set up Zoom and a virtual/hybrid Board of Trustees Meeting.  
 May 2023 Board of Trustees Meeting:  

o Vimeo analytics:  
https://vimeo.com/manage/videos/827429008/analytics     

o YouTube Analytics: 
https://studio.youtube.com/video/nu1iphSuBjc/analytics/tab-
overview/period-default 

o Facebook Analytics: 
https://www.facebook.com/KansasCityKansasCommunityCollege/videos/19772
1389803095 

 Setup, recorded, and live streamed Monthly Board Finance Committee Meetings. 
 Set and recorded Board Community Engagement Meeting. 
 Nursing Pinning Ceremony 2023 setup and live stream: 

o Vimeo analytics:  
https://vimeo.com/manage/videos/825562221/analytics  

o YouTube Analytics: 
https://studio.youtube.com/video/c6uspb_cDr4/analytics/tab-
overview/period-default.  

o Facebook Analytics: 
https://www.facebook.com/KansasCityKansasCommunityCollege/videos/75960
1028993699.  

 Commencement Ceremony May 18, 2023, 2:00 PM setup and live stream: 
o Vimeo analytics:  

https://vimeo.com/manage/videos/815434930/analytics. 
o YouTube Analytics: 

https://studio.youtube.com/video/Egkn4kwBmP0/analytics/tab-
overview/period-default.  

o Facebook Analytics: 
https://www.facebook.com/KansasCityKansasCommunityCollege/videos/64303
8177157712.    

 
 
 

https://vimeo.com/manage/videos/827429008/analytics
https://studio.youtube.com/video/nu1iphSuBjc/analytics/tab-overview/period-default
https://studio.youtube.com/video/nu1iphSuBjc/analytics/tab-overview/period-default
https://www.facebook.com/KansasCityKansasCommunityCollege/videos/197721389803095
https://www.facebook.com/KansasCityKansasCommunityCollege/videos/197721389803095
https://vimeo.com/manage/videos/825562221/analytics
https://studio.youtube.com/video/c6uspb_cDr4/analytics/tab-overview/period-default
https://studio.youtube.com/video/c6uspb_cDr4/analytics/tab-overview/period-default
https://www.facebook.com/KansasCityKansasCommunityCollege/videos/759601028993699
https://www.facebook.com/KansasCityKansasCommunityCollege/videos/759601028993699
https://vimeo.com/manage/videos/815434930/analytics
https://studio.youtube.com/video/Egkn4kwBmP0/analytics/tab-overview/period-default
https://studio.youtube.com/video/Egkn4kwBmP0/analytics/tab-overview/period-default
https://www.facebook.com/KansasCityKansasCommunityCollege/videos/643038177157712
https://www.facebook.com/KansasCityKansasCommunityCollege/videos/643038177157712


  
 

  
 

 Commencement Ceremony May 18, 2023, 7:00 PM setup and live stream: 
o Vimeo analytics: 

https://vimeo.com/manage/videos/815668200/analytics.  
o YouTube Analytics: 

https://studio.youtube.com/video/4UL89W_HfOc/analytics/tab-
overview/period-default.  

o Facebook Analytics: 
https://www.facebook.com/KansasCityKansasCommunityCollege/videos/13731
05779926597. 

 Leavenworth Correctional Facility Graduation May 25, 2023 setup live stream: 
o Vimeo analytics: https://vimeo.com/manage/videos/822759198/analytics.     

 “Perseverance” & “Resilience” Sculptures Unveiling May 25, 2023 setup and live 
stream: 
o Vimeo analytics: 

https://vimeo.com/manage/videos/826905629/analytics.  
o YouTube Analytics: 

https://studio.youtube.com/video/R5SGy-E4eOI/analytics/tab-
overview/period-default.  

o Facebook Analytics: 
https://www.facebook.com/KansasCityKansasCommunityCollege/videos/12242
2310854885.  

 Recorded The Center for Teaching of Excellence award recipients for the TEACH 
webpage. 

 Recorded and set up the Annual Board of Trustees Meeting for the Kansas City 
Kansas Community College College Senate. 

 Recorded and set up the Master Facilities Plan Workshop for the Board of Trustees, 
Faculty, and Staff. 

 

NETWORK SERVICES 

 Self-Service web application availability – 99%. 
 Student Recruiter web app availability – 99%. 
 MyDotte web app availability – 98%. 
 Email availability for employees and students - 99%. 
 Network switch and phone availability – 98%. 
 Microsoft updates and security patches applied on one hundred and fifty servers. 
 Upgrade of all computers to Windows 10 Version 22H2, currently at 76.8% 

completion.  
 

https://vimeo.com/manage/videos/815668200/analytics
https://studio.youtube.com/video/4UL89W_HfOc/analytics/tab-overview/period-default
https://studio.youtube.com/video/4UL89W_HfOc/analytics/tab-overview/period-default
https://www.facebook.com/KansasCityKansasCommunityCollege/videos/1373105779926597
https://www.facebook.com/KansasCityKansasCommunityCollege/videos/1373105779926597
https://vimeo.com/manage/videos/822759198/analytics.
https://vimeo.com/manage/videos/826905629/analytics
https://studio.youtube.com/video/R5SGy-E4eOI/analytics/tab-overview/period-default
https://studio.youtube.com/video/R5SGy-E4eOI/analytics/tab-overview/period-default
https://www.facebook.com/KansasCityKansasCommunityCollege/videos/122422310854885
https://www.facebook.com/KansasCityKansasCommunityCollege/videos/122422310854885


  
 

  
 

 
 Monthly (or as needed) computer software updates in progress: Chrome, Firefox, 

Edge, Adobe Acrobat Reader DC; this is only a small list from our Microsoft 
Defender Vulnerability list. The Google Chrome browser is updating to version 
114.0.5735.134, Firefox to version 114.0.1, and Edge to version 114.0.1823.43. 

 All outdoor wireless access points have been replaced, completing our wireless 
infrastructure upgrade project. 

 Microsoft Endpoint Manager now manages Windows features, quality, and security 
updates. The feature is called Windows Autopatch and oversees the updates for all 
KCKCC-owned computers, whether on our local network or outside our network. 

 Authentication to Tableau has been updated from local authentication in the 
Tableau environment to Security Assertion Markup Language (SAML) to provide 
Single Sign-On (SSO) and Multi-Factor capabilities. We are also adopting the same 
authentication process for the Foundation. 
 



2 0 2 4 - 2 0 2 7

STRATEGIC 
PLAN

D R A F T  



06
Student 
Success

Quality 
Programs & 
Services

04
Contents



08 10
Employee 
Engagement

Community 
Engagement



D R A F T  

Student Success
Provide services and resources that empower students to attain 
their goals.01

GOAL 1  Enhance student-centered services and processes.

KPI  Biennial Noel Levitz Student Satisfaction Inventory survey score for 
student-centered services (Baseline 2022).

Initiatives:

1  |  Enhance admission and orientation processes to create a more seamless and responsive 
experience for prospective students.

2  |  Identify and remove barriers to successful student enrollment, persistence to enroll in the 
next semester, and degree and certificate completion. 

3  |  Enhance and expand classroom delivery options, including online, weekend, intercession, 
hybrid and hyflex classes. 

4   |  Increase student participation in service learning, undergraduate research, apprenticeships, 
internships and similar opportunities. 

GOAL 2  Achieve and maintain a retention rate of first-time,  full-time 
degree/certificate-seeking students at or above KCKCC’s Integrated 
Postsecondary Education Data System (IPEDS) Comparison Group 
Median, maintaining a minimum baseline of 58%. 

KPI  Year-over-year actual retention rate.

Initiatives:

1  |  Enhance capabilities and increase college-wide use of an early intervention system for   
at-risk students.

2  |  Create and implement an academic and career advising framework focused on guided 
pathways to increase student persistence to the next semester. 

3  |  Expand and promote integrated student support services to further enhance holistic 
student wellness. 

4  |  Expand dual and concurrent enrollment opportunities with area high schools to continue 
student enrollment after high school at KCKCC.

 4  S T U D E N T  S U C C E S S 



D R A F T  

GOAL 3  Maintain a 150% of normal time completion rate for  
first-time, full-time degree/certificate-seeking students at or 
above KCKCC’s Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System 
(IPEDS) Comparison Group Median, maintaining a minimum 
baseline of  at least 28%.

KPI  Year-over-year completion rate.

Initiatives:

1  |  Create and implement targeted initiatives that assist associate degree-seeking students to 
graduate in no more than three years. 

2  |  Develop and implement completion strategies under a guided pathways framework to 
empower students to complete certificate and degree programs within a 150% timeframe. 

3  |  Adopt a method to collect and measure student intent upon initial enrollment to better 
serve individual student needs and goals. 

4  |  Develop a college-wide process to strategically schedule classes and implement a year-long 
schedule that allows students to see, plan and enroll in classes earlier in future semesters. 

GOAL 4  Increase student engagement and career-connected 
opportunities.

KPI  Outcomes indicated in the First Destination Survey (Baseline Fall 2023).

Initiatives:

1  |  Expand career readiness and employment placement services to help students successfully 
transition to the workforce.

2  |  Increase opportunities for academic programs and industry partners to educate students 
about career possibilities.

3  |  Expand supplemental instruction to enhance active and collaborative learning. 

4  |  Implement a student engagement platform to enhance the student’s experience.

  S T U D E N T  S U C C E S S  5



D R A F T  

GOAL 1  Enhance processes and programs to help students 
successfully transfer to four-year institutions.

KPI  Maintain or increase the percentage of students who transfer (Baseline 
AY 2021).

Initiatives: 

1  ||  Enhance articulation agreements with four-year colleges where KCKCC students most 
often transfer.

2  ||  Expand relationships and dual admission programs with four-year colleges and 
universities to improve the matriculation process for students.

3  ||  Identify transfer-seeking students early in their educational career to enhance support 
services for them.

4  ||  Enhance strategies supporting transfer-seeking students to complete transfer-level math.

GOAL 2  Align program and course offerings to meet workforce 
educational needs.

KPI  Maintain and increase the percentage of in-field placement rates in 
technical education programs (Baseline AY 2023).

Initiatives:

1  ||  Expand credit and noncredit workforce and customized training offerings to meet the 
needs of regional businesses and industries.

2  ||  Utilizing program review, develop and implement a process for creating new programs 
and sunsetting existing programs.

3  ||  Enhance the College’s capabilities to offer KCKCC courses at business and industry 
locations.

4  ||  Increase the use of external occupational data in all program planning and review 
processes. 

Quality Programs & Services
Provide excellence in education by offering relevant and innovative 
educational programs and services that meet the needs of our 
students and community.

02

 6  Q U A L I T Y  P R O G R A M S  &  S E R V I C E S 



D R A F T  

GOAL 3  Enhance student-focused learning environments and 
foster learner-centered instruction.

KPI  Increase the number of courses that are offered in hybrid and hyflex 
formats. Report annual investment and count of updated student-focused 
environments (Baseline AY 2023).

Initiatives:

1  ||  Continue the multi-year plan to bring the physical environment of student learning spaces 
in alignment with industry and/or educational best practices.

2  ||  Engage external partners to provide additional resources to enhance the student learning 
environment.

3  ||  Develop common methodologies to measure and enhance the impact of learner-centered 
instruction for students.

4  ||  Increase learner-centered opportunities in lifelong learning and adult education classes. 

GOAL 4  Implement a holistic, integrated support system for 
traditionally underserved students.

KPI  Increase fall to spring persistence rates for traditionally underserved 
students (Baseline AY 2022).

Initiatives:

1  ||  Utilize Upward Bound and other similar programs to better prepare students in 
traditionally underserved high schools to be successful in higher education.

2  ||  Create and implement a plan to increase engagement of traditionally underserved adult 
learners at KCKCC.

3  ||  Increase utilization of targeted case management and mentoring programs to improve 
success for traditionally underserved students.

4  ||  Examine current methods for placement of traditionally underserved students in academic 
courses and continue to utilize and increase the use of multiple-measure assessment 
practices.

  Q U A L I T Y  P R O G R A M S  &  S E R V I C E S   7



D R A F T  

GOAL 1  Enhance employee satisfaction.

KPI  Increased employee “Overall Satisfaction” score indicated by the biennial 
Noel Levitz College Employee Satisfaction Survey (Baseline 2021).

Initiatives:

1  ||  Develop and implement a comprehensive, college-wide compensation plan that includes 
considerations for high-demand, high-wage positions in the current employment market.

2  ||  Create a succession planning processthat includes the identification of critical positions, 
training and career development opportunities for existing employees.

3  ||  Expand professional development and mentorship programs for new and existing 
employees.

4  ||  Develop a process to ensure the application of College policies and procedures are 
consistently applied across the institution. 

GOAL 2  Increase employee engagement across the College.

KPI  Number of employees engaged in communication activities (Baseline AY 
2023).

Initiatives:

1  ||  Develop a user-friendly employee content management system to serve as a KCKCC 
knowledge repository.

2  ||  Create and implement a comprehensive mixed-modal internal communication plan to 
improve communication across the College.

3  ||  Strengthen community and collegiality through social events offsite and at KCKCC 
locations.

4  ||  Enhance collaboration across the College through cross-training and multi-disciplinary 
teams to work on various College initiatives.

Employee Engagement
Foster an institutional culture that promotes diversity and inclusion, 
and a commitment to KCKCC, student and employee success.03

 8  E M P L O Y E E  E N G A G E M E N T 



D R A F T  

GOAL 3  Attract and retain a high-performing workforce.

KPI  Maintain a turnover rate for full-time employees that is equal to or less 
than national data benchmarks.

Initiatives:

1  ||  Enhance the employee recruiting strategy to help with attracting and hiring qualified 
candidates.

2  ||  Develop user-friendly employment recruitment materials that highlight KCKCC’s culture 
and successes.

3  ||  Enhance and streamline the onboarding processes.

4  ||  Assess the College benefits package in comparison to local and peer institution 
benchmarks to position KCKCC as a competitive employer for top candidates. 

GOAL 4  Foster an environment that embraces inclusion and 
reflects the community the College serves.

KPI  Establish a baseline and seek to continuously enhance employee 
perception from an employee culture and inclusivity assessment (Baseline 
Fall 2023).

Initiatives:

1  ||  Establish a process to measure employee perception of culture and inclusivity at the 
College.

2  ||  Create and implement an action plan that provides the College with a guide to build an 
inclusive work culture.

3  ||  Enhance employee understanding of best practices in inclusivity and working in a multi-
cultural environment through activities and training.

4  ||  Enhance and further develop cross-cultural competencies among employees to foster an 
inclusive environment. 

  E M P L O Y E E  E N G A G E M E N T   9



D R A F T  

GOAL 1  Increase the level of community engagement of 
employees and students through service in the community.

KPI  The number of events and activities where KCKCC engages the 
community with service and outreach projects (Baseline AY 2023).

Initiatives:

1  ||  Create an institutional culture that promotes and celebrates employee and student   
involvement in the community. 

2  ||  Promote employee and student achievements in the College service area.

3  ||  Assess and enhance reputation of KCKCC in the College service area.

4  ||  Develop a communication plan to promote community involvement opportunities for 
employees and students.

GOAL 2  Cultivate and strengthen mutually beneficial partnerships 
with business, industry and community stakeholders.

KPI  External funding provided through financial and in-kind contributions 
(Baseline FY 2024).

Initiatives:

1  ||  Establish a physical presence in downtown Kansas City, Kansas, with holistic services for 
students and the community.

2  ||  Expand and enhance partnerships with businesses and civic organizations to better serve 
the region.

3  ||  Increase partnerships and public support to expand KCKCC programs and services in 
Leavenworth County.

4  ||  Celebrate KCKCC’s centennial anniversary and the College’s recent achievements through 
outreach and community engagement.

Community Engagement
Advance KCKCC to its next level of excellence and elevate the College’s 
presence in the community.04

 1 0  C O M M U N I T Y  E N G A G E M E N T 



D R A F T  

GOAL 3  Increase the number of gifts and total financial 
contributions to the KCKCC Foundation each year.

KPI  The number of gifts and amount raised each year (Baseline FY 2023).

Initiatives:

1  ||  Further develop and initiate strategies to increase KCKCC Foundation endowed and  
non-endowed giving.

2  ||  Continue to increase the number of employees who give to the KCKCC Family Fund 
campaign.

3  ||  Engage College alumni in tangible ways that foster giving to the KCKCC Foundation.

4  ||  Expand the use of KCKCC’s Foundation database to grow mutually beneficial and 
financially rewarding relationships in business and industry.

GOAL 4  Increase the number of students interested in College 
academic programs through branded marketing efforts.

KPI  The number of inquiries from online advertising and visits to  
community-facing website pages (Baseline AY 2023).

Initiatives:

1  ||  Enhance the website to focus on student recruitment and retention efforts.

2  ||  Develop efficient processes to create increased quality recruitment leads through targeted 
marketing efforts.

3  ||  Host more events in the community and at KCKCC locations to promote the College with 
key audiences.

4  ||  Develop and implement strategies to work with business and industry partners to promote 
College academic programs and workforce training opportunities.

  C O M M U N I T Y  E N G A G E M E N T   1 1



Mission

INSPIRE 
INDIVIDUALS &
ENRICH OUR 
COMMUNITY ONE
STUDENT AT A TIME

Vision

BE A NATIONAL 
LEADER IN ACADEMIC 
EXCELLENCE & 
PARTNER OF CHOICE 
IN THE COMMUNITIES 
WE SERVE

Board of Trustees

Brad Isnard
Vice Chair

Evelyn Criswell
Chair

Don Ash Rosalyn Brown Linda Hoskins SuttonDr. Ray DanielsPat Brune 

President’s Cabinet

D R A F T  

Purpose

Kansas City Kansas Community 
College, a two-year community 
college, provides general, transfer, and 
career and technical education in a 
student-centered diverse and inclusive 
educational environment. KCKCC is 
committed to preparing students to 
succeed in the workforce, transition 
to four-year institutions and be 
contributing citizens in their community. 

Values

· Student Success 
· Excellence  
· Diversity, Equity and Inclusion  
· Innovation 
· Integrity  
· Collaboration 

Dr. Greg Mosier
President

Jerry Pope
Vice President of 
Academic Affairs

Peter Gabriel
Chief Information 

Officer

Christina McGee
Chief Human 

Resources Officer

Dr. Chris Meiers 
Vice President of 

Student Affairs and 
Enrollment Management

Kristy Green
Chief Marketing 
and Institutional

Image Officer

Dr. Shelley Kneuvean
Chief Financial 

Officer

Dr. Scott Balog
Executive Vice 

President 



 
 

Board of Trustees Meeting Schedule 
FY2024 

Meetings are at 5:00 p.m. on the 3rd Tuesday of each month. 
Meetings are Hybrid at KCKCC-Main Campus Upper Jewell Lounge and Zoom Meeting. 

*Marks the exceptions. 
 

MEETINGS 
 

Tuesday, July 18, 2023 
 
 

*Tuesday, August 22, 2023 
 
 

*Tuesday, September 19, 2023 
(9:00 a.m. at Main Campus) 

 
 

*Tuesday, October 17, 2023 
(9:00 a.m. at Pioneer Career Center) 

 
 

*Tuesday, November 14, 2023 
 
 

* Tuesday, December 12, 2023 
 
 

Tuesday, January 16, 2024 
 
 

Tuesday, February 20, 2024 
 
 

Tuesday, March 19, 2024 
 
 

*Tuesday, April 16, 2024 
(9:00 a.m. at Technical Education Center) 

 
 

Tuesday, May 21, 2024 
 
 

Tuesday, June 18, 2024 
 

 









7250 State Avenue • Kansas City, KS 66112 • 913-334-1100 
“An Equal Opportunity Educational Institution”                                                                                                               

RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION REGARDING THE CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOLIC LIQUOR IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH K. S. A. 41-719 (i) 

 
WHEREAS, Kansas Statutes Annotated 41-719 (d) prohibits the consumption of alcoholic liquor 

on public property except where expressly permitted by law; and 
 

WHEREAS, The Kansas City Kansas Community College (KCKCC) is authorized under Kansas 
law to exempt from the provisions of K. S. A. 41-719 (d) specified property which is under the 

control of the KCKCC Board of Trustees and which is not used for classroom instruction. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF KCKCC: 
 

Section1:  KCKCC hereby exempts for the following dates in fall 2023 and spring 2024 
 from 12:00 p.m. to 1:00 p.m. 

 
• Tuesday, August 29th    
• Thursday, September 14th   
• Wednesday, October 18th   
• Wednesday, November 1st   
• Thursday, November 30th     

• Thursday, January 25th  
• Wednesday, February 14th  
• Thursday, March 7th  
• Monday, April 8th  
• Wednesday, May 1st 

 
 

   Upper Level Jewell Lounge from the requirement of K. S. A. 41-719 (d). 
 

Section 2:  This exemption is granted in connection with the holding of the Celebration of Mass, 
for the Catholic Students of Kansas City Kansas Community College. 

 
 PASSED AND APPROVED by the Board of KCKCC in a meeting held on June 20, 2023. 

 
  BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
  KANSAS CITY KANSAS COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
 
  Signature_______________________________________________________ 
        Board Chairperson 

        Print Name:  Evelyn Criswell 
 
  Attest__________________________________________________________ 
        Secretary 
        Print Name:  Dr. Greg Mosier 


	SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA
	Special Meeting Agenda - June 20, 2023
	Special Meeting Agenda - June 20, 2023.pdf

	NEW BUSINESS
	Plans for the “Wash Barn” at Technical Education Center. Presented by Dr. Greg Mosier.

	EXECUTIVE SESSION(S)
	1)	Executive session for consultation with an attorney for the public body or agency which would be deemed privileged in the attorney-client relationship with possible action to follow in open session (10-minute duration).
	2)	Executive session for the preliminary discussion of the acquisition of real property with possible action to follow in open session (15-minute duration).


	REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
	Regular Meeting Agenda - June 20, 2023
	Regular Meeting Agenda - June 20, 2023.pdf


	RECOGNITIONS/PRESENTATIONS
	KCKCC Foundation Biannual Update. Presented by Ms. Mary Spangler, Executive Director of the KCKCC Foundation and Ms. Mary Ricketts, KCKCC Foundation Chairperson.

	COMMUNICATIONS
	Introduction of Dr. Fabiola Riobe, Vice President of Educational Innovation and Global Programming. Presented by Dr. Greg Mosier.

	BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS
	CONSENT AGENDA
	Item A - Minutes of May 16, 2023 Meeting
	Item A - Regular Meeting Minutes - May 16, 2023.pdf

	Item A1 - Minutes of Special Meeting - May 16, 2023
	Item A1 - Special Meeting Minutes - May 16, 2023.pdf

	Item B - Recommendations for Payment
	Item B - Recommendations for Payment - June 2023.pdf

	Item C - Ratification List
	Item C - Items for Ratification - June 2023.pdf

	Item D - Personnel Report
	Item D - Personnel Report - June 2023.pdf


	REPORTS
	Student Senate Report - Not scheduled due to summer break.
	President's Report - Dr. Greg Mosier
	Executive Vice President Report - Dr. Scott Balog
	Vice President of Academic Affairs Report - Dr. Tiffany Bohm, Dean of Health Professions, on behalf of Mr. Jerry Pope, Vice President of Academic Affairs
	VPAA Report - June 2023.pdf

	Vice President of Student Affairs and Enrollment Management Report - Dr. Chris Meiers
	VPSAEM Report - June 2023.pdf

	Vice President Educational Innovation and Global Programming Report – Dr. Fabiola Riobe
	Chief Marketing and Institutional Image Officer Report - Ms. Kris Green
	CMIIO Report - June 2023.pdf

	Chief Financial Officer Report - Dr. Shelley Kneuvean
	CFO Report - June 2023.pdf
	Budget/Finance Reports
	Monthly Financial Summary May 2023.pdf
	Financial Report - May 2023.pdf
	Electrical Usage - May 2023.pdf


	Chief Human Resources Officer Report - Ms. Christina McGee
	CHRO Report - June 2023.pdf

	Chief Information Officer Report - Mr. Peter Gabriel
	CIO Report - June 2023.pdf


	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	Approval of the Strategic Plan 2024-2027. Presented by Ms. Kris Green, Chief Marketing and Institutional Image Officer.
	Strategic Plan 2024-2027 Final Draft - May 2023.pdf

	Approval of the Board of Trustees Meeting Schedule for FY2024. Presented by Dr. Greg Mosier.
	Board of Trustees Meeting Schedule FY2024 - Proposed - May 2023.pdf


	NEW BUSINESS
	Approval of Preapproved Contracts List FY2024. Presented by Dr. Shelley Kneuvean.
	Preapproved Contracts List FY2024 - June 2023.pdf

	Approval of Alcohol Resolution for the Celebration of Mass for the Catholic Students of Kansas City Kansas Community College for FY2024 (multiple dates). Presented by Dr. Greg Mosier.
	RESOLUTION - Catholic Mass Alcohol Usage for Fall 2023 - Spring 2024_June 2023.pdf



